

Republic of the Philippines NATIONAL LIBRARY OF THE PHILIPPINES

BID DOCUMENTS FOR PUBLIC BIDDING NO. 21-01

SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF FOREIGN EBOOKS FOR THE NLP – REFERENCE DIVISION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I. INVITATION TO BID	3
SECTION II. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	5
SECTION III. BID DATA SHEET	34
SECTION IV. GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	37
SECTION V. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	51
SECTION VI. SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS	53
SECTION VII. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	67
SECTION VIII, BIDDING FORMS	69

SECTION I. INVITATION TO BID

SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF FOREIGN EBOOKS FOR THE NLP- REFERENCE DIVISION

The National Library of the Philippines (NLP) through the authorized appropriation for **FY 2021** General Appropriation Act (GAA) intends to apply the sum **One Million One Hundred Thousand Pesos** (**Php1,100,000.00**) being the Approved Budget Contract (ABC) to payments under the contract for the **SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF FOREIGN EBOOKS FOR THE NLP – REFERENCE DIVISION** under **Public Bidding No. 21-01.** Bidding will be through **LOT BIDDING.** Bids received in excess of the ABC shall be automatically rejected at bid opening.

Lot No.	Item Description	Approved Budget Contract
		(ABC)
1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php203,192.00
2	Self-help eBooks	Php251,000.00
3	Scholarly eBooks	Php645,808.00
	TOTAL ABC	Php1,100,000.00

The NLP now invites bids for the **SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF FOREIGN EBOOKS FOR THE NLP – REFERENCE DIVISION.** Delivery of the goods is required within thirty (30) calendar days upon receipt of Purchase Order. Bidders should have completed, within two (2) years from the date of submission and receipt of bids, a contract similar to the Project. The description of an eligible to bidder is contained in the Bidding Documents, particularly, in Section II. Instructions to Bidders (ITB).

Bidding will be conducted through open competitive bidding procedures using a non-discretionary "pass/fail" criterion as specified in the Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of Republic Act (RA) 9184, otherwise known as the "Government Procurement Reform Act. Bidding is restricted to Filipino citizens/sole proprietorship, partnerships, or organizations with at least sixty percent (60%) interest or outstanding capital stock belonging to citizens of the Philippines, and to citizens or organizations of a country the laws or regulations of which grant similar rights or privileges to Filipino citizens, pursuant to RA 5183 and subject to Commonwealth Act 138.

Interested Bidders may obtain further information from NLP Bids and Awards Committee (BAC) Secretariat email address and inspect the Bidding Documents posted at the Philippine Government Electronic Procurement System (PhilGEPS) or in our official website web.nlp.gov.ph

A complete set of Bidding Documents may be acquired by interested Bidders starting on **March 03, 2021** from the address below and upon payment of a nonrefundable fee for the Bidding Documents, pursuant to the latest Guidelines issued by the GPPB:

Lot	Item Description	Approved Budget	Bidding Documents
No.		Contract (ABC)	Amount
1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php203,192.00	Php500.00
2	Self-help eBooks	Php251,000.00	Php500.00
3	Scholarly eBooks	Php645,808.00	Php1,000.00

The NLP will hold an online Pre-Bid Conference on March 11, 2021 at 10:00 AM through videoconferencing which shall be open to all interested bidders. Send interest to bac@nlp.gov.ph with subject: Request to join the Pre-Bid Conference of Public Bidding No. 21-01. The BAC shall also entertain inquiries through email up to March 23, 2021 or 1 day before the bid opening.

Bids must be delivered to the address below on or before, but not later than **10:00 AM** of **March 24, 2021**. Submit a soft copy of technical (in PDF) and financial (in Word or Excel use "**Bibliographic Information**") requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid security in any of the acceptable forms and in the amount stated in ITB Clause 18.

Bid opening shall be on **March 24, 2021** at **10:01 AM** at 2nd Floor, NLP Building, T.M. Kalaw St. Ermita, Manila. Bids will be opened in the presence of the bidders or authorized representatives who choose to attend at the address below. Bidders are given option to attend the bid opening through videoconferencing. Late Bids shall not be accepted.

The NLP reserves the right to select, accept or reject any bid, to annul the bidding process, and to reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidders.

For further information, please refer to:

IRA ALBALOS MARIE JOY BESTOIR PHILMARC JACINTO

BAC Secretariat

National Library of the Philippines

Tel. No.: (02) 5336-7200 loc. 406 / 408

Email: bac@nlp.gov.ph

Sgd. **SUSAN J. FETALO**BAC, Chairperson

Section II. Instructions to Bidders

TABLE OF CONTENTS

A.	GENE	RAL	7
	1.	Scope of Bid	7
	2.	Source of Funds	7
	3.	Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, and Coercive Practices	7
	4.	Conflict of Interest	8
	5.	Eligible Bidders	10
	6.	Bidder's Responsibilities	11
	7.	Origin of Goods	14
	8.	Subcontracts	14
B.	Cont	ENTS OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS	14
	9.	Pre-Bid Conference	14
	10.	Clarification and Amendment of Bidding Documents	15
C.	PREP	ARATION OF BIDS	15
	11.	Language of Bid	15
	12.	Documents Comprising the Bid: Eligibility and Technical Components	15
	13.	Documents Comprising the Bid: Financial Component	17
	14.	Alternative Bids	18
	15.	Bid Prices	18
	16.	Bid Currencies	20
	17.	Bid Validity	20
	18.	Bid Security	20
	19.	Format and Signing of Bids	23
	20.	Sealing and Marking of Bids	23
D.	SUBM	IISSION AND OPENING OF BIDS	24
	21.	Deadline for Submission of Bids	24
	22.	Late Bids	24
	23.	Modification and Withdrawal of Bids	24
	24.	Opening and Preliminary Examination of Bids	25
E.	EVAL	UATION AND COMPARISON OF BIDS	27
	25.	Process to be Confidential	27
	26.	Clarification of Bids	27
	27.	Domestic Preference	27

	28.	Detailed Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	28
	29.	Post-Qualification	29
	30.	Reservation Clause	30
F.	AWA	RD OF CONTRACT	31
	31.	Contract Award	31
	32.	Signing of the Contract	31
	33.	Performance Security	32
	34.	Notice to Proceed	33
	35.	Protest Mechanism.	33

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1. The Procuring Entity named in the **BDS** invites bids for the supply and delivery of the Goods as described in Section VII. Technical Specifications.
- 1.2. The name, identification, and number of lots specific to this bidding are provided in the **BDS**. The contracting strategy and basis of evaluation of lots is described in **ITB** Clause 0.

2. Source of Funds

The Procuring Entity has a budget or has received funds from the Funding Source named in the <u>BDS</u>, and in the amount indicated in the <u>BDS</u>. It intends to apply part of the funds received for the Project, as defined in the <u>BDS</u>, to cover eligible payments under the contract.

3. Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, and Coercive Practices

- 3.1. Unless otherwise specified in the <u>BDS</u>, the Procuring Entity as well as the bidders and suppliers shall observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of the contract. In pursuance of this policy, the Procuring Entity:
- (a) defines, for purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" means behavior on the part of officials in the public or private sectors by which they improperly and unlawfully enrich themselves, others, or induce others to do so, by misusing the position in which they are placed, and includes the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of any such official in the procurement process or in contract execution; entering, on behalf of the government, into any contract or transaction manifestly and grossly disadvantageous to the same, whether or not the public officer profited or will profit thereby, and similar acts as provided in RA 3019.
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Procuring Entity, and includes collusive practices among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels and to deprive the Procuring Entity of the benefits of free and open competition.
 - (iii) "collusive practices" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of the Procuring

Entity, designed to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels.

- (iv) "coercive practices" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons, or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of a contract:
- (v) "obstructive practice" is
 - deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering (aa) concealing of evidence material to an administrative proceedings or investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an administrative proceedings or investigation of the Procuring Entity or any foreign government/foreign or international financing institution into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters to the administrative proceedings investigation or from pursuing such proceedings or investigation; or
 - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the inspection and audit rights of the Procuring Entity or any foreign government/foreign or international financing institution herein.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in any of the practices mentioned in this Clause for purposes of competing for the contract.
- 3.2. Further, the Procuring Entity will seek to impose the maximum civil, administrative, and/or criminal penalties available under applicable laws on individuals and organizations deemed to be involved in any of the practices mentioned in **ITB** Clause 3.1. (a).
- 3.3 Furthermore, the Funding Source and the Procuring Entity reserve the right to inspect and audit records and accounts of a bidder or supplier in the bidding for and performance of a contract themselves or through independent auditors as reflected in the **GCC** Clause 0.

4. Conflict of Interest

4.1. All Bidders found to have conflicting interests shall be disqualified to participate in the procurement at hand, without prejudice to the imposition of appropriate administrative, civil, and criminal sanctions. A Bidder may be considered to have conflicting interests with another Bidder in any of the events described in paragraphs (a) through (c) below and a general conflict of

interest in any of the circumstances set out in paragraphs (d) through (g) below:

- (a) A Bidder has controlling shareholders in common with another Bidder;
- (b) A Bidder receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from any other Bidder;
- (c) A Bidder has the same legal representative as that of another Bidder for purposes of this bid;
- (d) A Bidder has a relationship, directly or through third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the bid of another Bidder or influence the decisions of the Procuring Entity regarding this bidding process;
- (e) A Bidder submits more than one bid in this bidding process. However, this does not limit the participation of subcontractors in more than one bid;
- (f) A Bidder who participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the Goods and related services that are the subject of the bid; or
- (g) A Bidder who lends, or temporarily seconds, its personnel to firms or organizations which are engaged in consulting services for the preparation related to procurement for or implementation of the project, if the personnel would be involved in any capacity on the same project.
- 4.2. In accordance with Section 47 of the IRR of RA 9184, all Bidding Documents shall be accompanied by a sworn affidavit of the Bidder that it is not related to the Head of the Procuring Entity (HoPE), members of the Bids and Awards Committee (BAC), members of the Technical Working Group (TWG), members of the BAC Secretariat, the head of the Project Management Office (PMO) or the end-user unit, and the project consultants, by consanguinity or affinity up to the third civil degree. On the part of the Bidder, this Clause shall apply to the following persons:
- (a) If the Bidder is an individual or a sole proprietorship, to the Bidder himself;
- (b) If the Bidder is a partnership, to all its officers and members;
- (c) If the Bidder is a corporation, to all its officers, directors, and controlling stockholders;
- (d) If the Bidder is a cooperative, to all its officers, directors, and controlling shareholders or members; and

(e) If the Bidder is a joint venture (JV), the provisions of items (a), (b), (c), or (d) of this Clause shall correspondingly apply to each of the members of th said JV, as may be appropriate.

Relationship of the nature described above or failure to comply with this Clause will result in the automatic disqualification of a Bidder.

5. Eligible Bidders

- 5.1. Unless otherwise provided in the **<u>BDS</u>**, the following persons shall be eligible to participate in this bidding:
- (a) Duly licensed Filipino citizens/sole proprietorships;
- (b) Partnerships duly organized under the laws of the Philippines and of which at least sixty percent (60%) of the interest belongs to citizens of the Philippines;
- (c) Corporations duly organized under the laws of the Philippines, and of which at least sixty percent (60%) of the outstanding capital stock belongs to citizens of the Philippines;
- (d) Cooperatives duly organized under the laws of the Philippines; and
- (e) Persons/entities forming themselves into a Joint Venture (JV), *i.e.*, a group of two (2) or more persons/entities that intend to be jointly and severally responsible or liable for a particular contract: Provided, however, that Filipino ownership or interest of the JV concerned shall be at least sixty percent (60%).
- 5.2. Foreign bidders may be eligible to participate when any of the following circumstances exist, as specified in the **BDS**:
- (a) When a Treaty or International or Executive Agreement as provided in Section 4 of RA 9184 and its IRR allow foreign bidders to participate;
- (b) Citizens, corporations, or associations of a country, the laws or regulations of which grant reciprocal rights or privileges to citizens, corporations, or associations of the Philippines;
- (c) When the Goods sought to be procured are not available from local suppliers; or
- (d) When there is a need to prevent situations that defeat competition or restrain trade.
- 5.3. Government owned or –controlled corporations (GOCCs) may be eligible to participate only if they can establish that they (a) are legally and financially autonomous, (b) operate under commercial law, and (c) are not attached agencies of the Procuring Entity.

5.4. Unless otherwise provided in the <u>BDS</u>, the Bidder must have completed a Single Largest Completed Contract (SLCC) similar to the Project and the value of which, adjusted, if necessary, by the Bidder to current prices using the Philippine Statistics Authority (PSA) consumer price index, must be at least equivalent to a percentage of the ABC stated in the <u>BDS</u>.

For this purpose, contracts similar to the Project shall be those described in the **<u>BDS</u>**, and completed within the relevant period stated in the Invitation to Bid and **ITB** Clause 12.1(a)(ii).

5.5. The Bidder must submit a computation of its Net Financial Contracting Capacity (NFCC), which must be at least equal to the ABC to be bid, calculated as follows:

NFCC = [(Current assets minus current liabilities) (15)] minus the value of all outstanding or uncompleted portions of the projects under ongoing contracts, including awarded contracts yet to be started, coinciding with the contract to be bid.

The values of the domestic bidder's current assets and current liabilities shall be based on the latest Audited Financial Statements submitted to the BIR.

For purposes of computing the foreign bidders' NFCC, the value of the current assets and current liabilities shall be based on their audited financial statements prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards.

If the prospective bidder opts to submit a committed Line of Credit, it must be at least equal to ten percent (10%) of the ABC to be bid. If issued by a foreign universal or commercial bank, it shall be confirmed or authenticated by a local universal or commercial bank.

6. Bidder's Responsibilities

- 6.1. The Bidder or its duly authorized representative shall submit a sworn statement in the form prescribed in Section VIII. Bidding Form as required in **ITB** Clause 0.
- 6.2. The Bidder is responsible for the following:
- (a) Having taken steps to carefully examine all of the Bidding Documents;
- (b) Having acknowledged all conditions, local or otherwise, affecting the implementation of the contract;
- (c) Having made an estimate of the facilities available and needed for the contract to be bid, if any;
- (d) Having complied with its responsibility to inquire or secure Supplemental/Bid Bulletin(s) as provided under **ITB** Clause 0.

- (e) Ensuring that it is not "blacklisted" or barred from bidding by the GOP or any of its agencies, offices, corporations, or LGUs, including foreign government/foreign or international financing institution whose blacklisting rules have been recognized by the GPPB;
- (f) Ensuring that each of the documents submitted in satisfaction of the bidding requirements is an authentic copy of the original, complete, and all statements and information provided therein are true and correct;
- (g) Authorizing the HoPE or its duly authorized representative/s to verify all the documents submitted:
- (h) Ensuring that the signatory is the duly authorized representative of the Bidder, and granted full power and authority to do, execute and perform any and all acts necessary and/or to represent the Bidder in the bidding, with the duly notarized Secretary's Certificate attesting to such fact, if the Bidder is a corporation, partnership, cooperative, or joint venture;
- (i) Complying with the disclosure provision under Section 47 of RA 9184 and its IRR in relation to other provisions of RA 3019;
- (j) Complying with existing labor laws and standards, in the case of procurement of services; Moreover, bidder undertakes to:
 - (i) Ensure the entitlement of workers to wages, hours of work, safety and health and other prevailing conditions of work as established by national laws, rules and regulations; or collective bargaining agreement; or arbitration award, if and when applicable.

In case there is a finding by the Procuring Entity or the DOLE of underpayment or non-payment of workers' wage and wage-related benefits, bidder agrees that the performance security or portion of the contract amount shall be withheld in favor of the complaining workers pursuant to appropriate provisions of Republic Act No. 9184 without prejudice to the institution of appropriate actions under the Labor Code, as amended, and other social legislations.

(ii) Comply with occupational safety and health standards and to correct deficiencies, if any.

In case of imminent danger, injury or death of the worker, bidder undertakes to suspend contract implementation pending clearance to proceed from the DOLE Regional Office and to comply with Work Stoppage Order; and

- (iii) Inform the workers of their conditions of work, labor clauses under the contract specifying wages, hours of work and other benefits under prevailing national laws, rules and regulations; or collective bargaining agreement; or arbitration award, if and when applicable, through posting in two (2) conspicuous places in the establishment's premises; and
- (k) Ensuring that it did not give or pay, directly or indirectly, any commission, amount, fee, or any form of consideration, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person or official, personnel or representative of the government in relation to any procurement project or activity.

Failure to observe any of the above responsibilities shall be at the risk of the Bidder concerned.

- 6.3. The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents.
- 6.4. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to determine and to satisfy itself by such means as it considers necessary or desirable as to all matters pertaining to the contract to be bid, including:
- (a) the location and the nature of this Project;
- (b) climatic conditions;
- (c) transportation facilities; and
- (d) other factors that may affect the cost, duration, and execution or implementation of this Project.
- 6.5. The Procuring Entity shall not assume any responsibility regarding erroneous interpretations or conclusions by the prospective or eligible bidder out of the data furnished by the procuring entity. However, the Procuring Entity shall ensure that all information in the Bidding Documents, including bid/supplemental bid bulletin/s issued, are correct and consistent.
- 6.6. Before submitting their bids, the Bidder is deemed to have become familiar with all existing laws, decrees, ordinances, acts and regulations of the Philippines which may affect this Project in any way.
- 6.7. The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his bid, and the Procuring Entity will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- 6.8. The Bidder should note that the Procuring Entity will accept bids only from those that have paid the applicable fee for the Bidding Documents at the office indicated in the Invitation to Bid.

7. Origin of Goods

Unless otherwise indicated in the <u>BDS</u>, there is no restriction on the origin of goods other than those prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, subject to **ITB** Clause 0.

8. Subcontracts

- 8.1. Unless otherwise specified in the <u>BDS</u>, the Bidder may subcontract portions of the Goods to an extent as may be approved by the Procuring Entity and stated in the <u>BDS</u>. However, subcontracting of any portion shall not relieve the Bidder from any liability or obligation that may arise from the contract for this Project.
- 8.2. Subcontractors must submit the documentary requirements under **ITB** Clause 12 and comply with the eligibility criteria specified in the **BDS**. In the event that any subcontractor is found by the Procuring Entity to be ineligible, the subcontracting of such portion of the Goods shall be disallowed.
- 8.3. The Bidder may identify the subcontractor to whom a portion of the Goods will be subcontracted at any stage of the bidding process or during contract implementation. If the Bidder opts to disclose the name of the subcontractor during bid submission, the Bidder shall include the required documents as part of the technical component of its bid.

B. Contents of Bidding Documents

9. Pre-Bid Conference

- 9.1. (a) If so specified in the <u>BDS</u>, a pre-bid conference shall be held at the venue and on the date indicated therein, to clarify and address the Bidders' questions on the technical and financial components of this Project.
- (b) The pre-bid conference shall be held at least twelve (12) calendar days before the deadline for the submission and receipt of bids, but not earlier than seven (7) calendar days from the posting of the invitation to bid/bidding documents in the PhilGEPS website. If the Procuring Entity determines that, by reason of the method, nature, or complexity of the contract to be bid, or when international participation will be more advantageous to the GOP, a longer period for the preparation of bids is necessary, the pre-bid conference shall be held at least thirty (30) calendar days before the deadline for the submission and receipt of bids, as specified in the **BDS**.
- 9.2. Bidders are encouraged to attend the pre-bid conference to ensure that they fully understand the Procuring Entity's requirements. Non-attendance of the Bidder will in no way prejudice its bid; however, the Bidder is expected to know the changes and/or amendments to the Bidding Documents as recorded in the minutes of the pre-bid conference and the Supplemental/Bid Bulletin. The minutes of the pre-bid conference shall be recorded and prepared not later than five (5) calendar days after the pre-bid conference. The minutes shall be made available to prospective bidders not later than five (5) days upon written request.

9.3. Decisions of the BAC amending any provision of the bidding documents shallbe issued in writing through a Supplemental/Bid Bulletin at least seven (7) calendar days before the deadline for the submission and receipt of bids.

10. Clarification and Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 10.1. Prospective bidders may request for clarification on and/or interpretation of any part of the Bidding Documents. Such request must be in writing and submitted to the Procuring Entity at the address indicated in the **BDS** at least ten (10) calendar days before the deadline set for the submission and receipt of Bids.
- 10.2. The BAC shall respond to the said request by issuing a Supplemental/Bid Bulletin, to be made available to all those who have properly secured the Bidding Documents, at least seven (7) calendar days before the deadline for the submission and receipt of Bids.
- 10.3. Supplemental/Bid Bulletins may also be issued upon the Procuring Entity's initiative for purposes of clarifying or modifying any provision of the Bidding Documents not later than seven (7) calendar days before the deadline for the submission and receipt of Bids. Any modification to the Bidding Documents shall be identified as an amendment.
- 10.4. Any Supplemental/Bid Bulletin issued by the BAC shall also be posted in the PhilGEPS and the website of the Procuring Entity concerned, if available, and at any conspicuous place in the premises of the Procuring Entity concerned. It shall be the responsibility of all Bidders who have properly secured the Bidding Documents to inquire and secure Supplemental/Bid Bulletins that may be issued by the BAC. However, Bidders who have submitted bids before the issuance of the Supplemental/Bid Bulletin must be informed and allowed to modify or withdraw their bids in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0.

C. Preparation of Bids

11. Language of Bids

The eligibility requirements or statements, the bids, and all other documents to be submitted to the BAC must be in English. If the eligibility requirements or statements, the bids, and all other documents submitted to the BAC are in foreign language other than English, it must be accompanied by a translation of the documents in English. The documents shall be translated by the relevant foreign government agency, the foreign government agency authorized to translate documents, or a registered translator in the foreign bidder's country; and shall be authenticated by the appropriate Philippine foreign service establishment/post or the equivalent office having jurisdiction over the foreign bidder's affairs in the Philippines. The English translation shall govern, for purposes of interpretation of the bid.

12. Documents Comprising the Bid: Eligibility and Technical Components

12.1. Unless otherwise indicated in the **BDS**, the first envelope shall contain the following eligibility and technical documents:

(a) Eligibility Documents –

Class "A" Documents:

- (i) PhilGEPS Certificate of Registration and Membership in accordance with Section 8.5.2 of the IRR, except for foreign bidders participating in the procurement by a Philippine Foreign Service Office or Post, which shall submit their eligibility documents under Section 23.1 of the IRR, provided, that the winning bidder shall register with the PhilGEPS in accordance with section 37.1.4 of the IRR.
- (ii) Statement of all its ongoing government and private contracts, including contracts awarded but not yet started, if any, whether similar or not similar in nature and complexity to the contract to be bid; and

Statement of the Bidder's SLCC similar to the contract to be bid, in accordance with ITB Clause 5.4, within the relevant period as provided in the **BDS**.

The two statements required shall indicate for each contract the following:

- (ii.1) name of the contract;
- (ii.2) date of the contract;
- (ii.3) contract duration;
- (ii.4) owner's name and address;
- (ii.5) kinds of Goods;
- (ii.6) For Statement of Ongoing Contracts amount of contract and value of outstanding contracts;
- (ii.7) For Statement of SLCC amount of completed contracts, adjusted by the Bidder to current prices using PSA's consumer price index, if necessary for the purpose of meeting the SLCC requirement;
- (ii.8) date of delivery; and
- (ii.9) end user's acceptance or official receipt(s) or sales invoice issued for the contract, if completed, which shall be attached to the statements.
- (iii) NFCC computation in accordance with ITB Clause 5.5 or a committed Line of Credit from a universal or commercial bank.

Class "B" Document:

(iv) If applicable, the Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) in case the joint venture is already in existence, or duly notarized statements from all the potential joint venture partners in accordance with Section 23.1(b) of the IRR.

(b) Technical Documents –

- (i) Bid security in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0. If the Bidder opts to submit the bid security in the form of:
 - (i.1.) a bank draft/guarantee or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a foreign bank, it shall be accompanied by a confirmation from a Universal or Commercial Bank; or
 - (i.2.) a surety bond, it shall be accompanied by a certification by the Insurance Commission that the surety or insurance company is authorized to issue such instruments;
- (ii) Conformity with technical specifications, as enumerated and specified in Sections VI and VII of the Bidding Documents; and
- (iii) Sworn statement in accordance with Section 25.3 of the IRR of RA 9184 and using the form prescribed in Section VIII. Bidding Forms.
- (iv) For foreign bidders claiming eligibility by reason of their country's extension of reciprocal rights to Filipinos, a certification from the relevant government office of their country stating that Filipinos are allowed to participate in their government procurement activities for the same item or product.

13. Documents Comprising the Bid: Financial Component

- 13.1. Unless otherwise stated in the **<u>BDS</u>**, the financial component of the bid shall contain the following:
- (a) Financial Bid Form, which includes bid prices and the applicable Price Schedules, in accordance with **ITB** Clauses 0 and 0;
- (b) If the Bidder claims preference as a Domestic Bidder, a certification from the DTI issued in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0, unless otherwise provided in the **BDS**; and
- (c) Any other document related to the financial component of the bid as stated in the **BDS**.

- 13.2. (a) Unless otherwise stated in the **BDS**, all bids that exceed the ABC shall not be accepted.
- (b) Unless otherwise indicated in the **BDS**, for foreign-funded procurement, a ceiling may be applied to bid prices provided the following conditions are met:
 - (i) Bidding Documents are obtainable free of charge on a freely accessible website. If payment of Bidding Documents is required by the procuring entity, payment could be made upon the submission of bids.
 - (ii) The procuring entity has procedures in place to ensure that the ABC is based on recent estimates made by the responsible unit of the procuring entity and that the estimates reflect the quality, supervision and risk and inflationary factors, as well as prevailing market prices, associated with the types of works or goods to be procured.
 - (iii) The procuring entity has trained cost estimators on estimating prices and analyzing bid variances.
 - (iv) The procuring entity has established a system to monitor and report bid prices relative to ABC and engineer's/procuring entity's estimate.
 - (v) The procuring entity has established a monitoring and evaluation system for contract implementation to provide a feedback on actual total costs of goods and works.

14. Alternative Bids

- 14.1 Alternative Bids shall be rejected. For this purpose, alternative bid is an offer made by a Bidder in addition or as a substitute to its original bid which may be included as part of its original bid or submitted separately therewith for purposes of bidding. A bid with options is considered an alternative bid regardless of whether said bid proposal is contained in an single envelope or submitted in two (2) or more separate bid envelopes.
- 14.2 Each Bidder shall submit only one Bid, either individually or as a partner in a JV. A Bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than as a subcontractor if a subcontractor is permitted to participate in more than one bid) will cause all the proposals with the Bidder's participation to be disqualified. This shall be without prejudice to any applicable criminal, civil and administrative penalties that may be imposed upon the persons and entities concerned.

15. Bid Prices

- 15.1. The Bidder shall complete the appropriate Schedule of Prices included herein, stating the unit prices, total price per item, the total amount and the expected countries of origin of the Goods to be supplied under this Project.
- 15.2. The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Goods described in the Schedule of Prices. Bids not addressing or providing all of the required items in the Bidding Documents including, where applicable, Schedule of Prices, shall be considered non-responsive and, thus, automatically disqualified. In this regard, where

a required item is provided, but no price is indicated, the same shall be considered as non-responsive, but specifying a zero (0) or a dash (-) for the said item would mean that it is being offered for free to the Government, except those required by law or regulations to be accomplished.

- 15.3 The terms Ex Works (EXW), Cost, Insurance and Freight (CIF), Cost and Insurance Paid to (CIP), Delivered Duty Paid (DDP), and other trade terms used to describe the obligations of the parties, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of the International Commercial Terms (INCOTERMS) published by the International Chamber of Commerce, Paris.
- 15.4. Prices indicated on the Price Schedule shall be entered separately in the following manner:
- (a) For Goods offered from within the Procuring Entity's country:
 - (i) The price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex works, ex factory, ex warehouse, ex showroom, or off-the-shelf, as applicable);
 - (ii) The cost of all customs duties and sales and other taxes already paid or payable;
 - (iii) The cost of transportation, insurance, and other costs incidental to delivery of the Goods to their final destination; and
 - (iv) The price of other (incidental) services, if any, listed in the **BDS**.
- (b) For Goods offered from abroad:
 - (i) Unless otherwise stated in the <u>BDS</u>, the price of the Goods shall be quoted DDP with the place of destination in the Philippines as specified in the <u>BDS</u>. In quoting the price, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible source country.
 - (ii) The price of other (incidental) services, if any, listed in the **BDS**.
- (c) For Services, based on the form which may be prescribed by the Procuring Entity, in accordance with existing laws, rules and regulations
- (d) Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the contract and not subject to variation or price escalation on any account. A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as non-responsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0.

All bid prices for the given scope of work in the contract as awarded shall be considered as fixed prices, and therefore not subject to price escalation during contract implementation, except under extraordinary circumstances. Upon the recommendation of the Procuring Entity, price escalation may be allowed in extraordinary circumstances as may be determined by the National Economic and Development

Authority in accordance with the Civil Code of the Philippines, and upon approval by the GPPB. Nevertheless, in cases where the cost of the awarded contract is affected by any applicable new laws, ordinances, regulations, or other acts of the GOP, promulgated after the date of bid opening, a contract price adjustment shall be made or appropriate relief shall be applied on a no loss-no gain basis.

16. Bid Currencies

- 16.1. Prices shall be quoted in the following currencies:
- (a) For Goods that the Bidder will supply from within the Philippines, the prices shall be quoted in Philippine Pesos.
- (b) For Goods that the Bidder will supply from outside the Philippines, the prices may be quoted in the currency(ies) stated in the **BDS**. However, for purposes of bid evaluation, bids denominated in foreign currencies shall be converted to Philippine currency based on the exchange rate as published in the *Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas* (BSP) reference rate bulletin on the day of the bid opening.
- (c) If so allowed in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0, the Procuring Entity for purposes of bid evaluation and comparing the bid prices will convert the amounts in various currencies in which the bid price is expressed to Philippine Pesos at the foregoing exchange rates.
- (d) Unless otherwise specified in the <u>BDS</u>, payment of the contract price shall be made in Philippine Pesos.

17. Bid Validity

- 17.1. Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the **BDS** which shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of the opening of bids.
- 17.2. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Procuring Entity may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. The bid security described in **ITB** Clause 18 should also be extended corresponding to the extension of the bid validity period at the least. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its bid security, but his bid shall no longer be considered for further evaluation and award. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid.

18. Bid Security

18.1. The Bidder shall submit a Bid Securing Declaration or any form of Bid Security in the amount stated in the **BDS**, which shall be not less than the percentage of the ABC in accordance with the following schedule:

Form of Bid Security	Amount of Bid Security (Not Less than the Percentage of the ABC)
(a) Cash or cashier's/manager's check issued by a Universal or Commercial Bank. For biddings conducted by LGUs, the Cashier's/Manager's Check may be issued by other banks certified by the BSP as authorized to issue such financial instruments.	
(b) Bank draft/guarantee or irrevocable letter of credit issued by a Universal or Commercial Bank: Provided, however, that it shall be confirmed or authenticated by a Universal or Commercial Bank, if issued by a foreign bank.	Two percent (2%)
For biddings conducted by LGUs, Bank Draft/Guarantee, or Irrevocable Letter of Credit may be issued by other banks certified by the BSP as authorized to issue such financial instruments.	
(c) Surety bond callable upon demand issued by a surety or insurance company duly certified by the Insurance Commission as authorized to issue such security.	Five percent (5%)

The Bid Securing Declaration mentioned above is an undertaking which states, among others, that the Bidder shall enter into contract with the procuring entity and furnish the performance security required under ITB Clause 33.2, within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award, and commits to pay the corresponding amount as fine, and be suspended for a period of time from being qualified to participate in any government procurement activity in the event it violates any of the conditions stated therein as provided in the guidelines issued by the GPPB.

- 18.2. The bid security should be valid for the period specified in the <u>BDS</u>. Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable bid security shall be rejected by the Procuring Entity as non-responsive.
- 18.3. No bid securities shall be returned to Bidders after the opening of bids and before contract signing, except to those that failed or declared as post-disqualified, upon submission of a waiver of their right to file a request for reconsideration and/or protest, or upon the lapse of the reglementary period to file a request for reconsideration or protest. Without prejudice on its forfeiture, bid securities shall be

returned only after the Bidder with the Lowest Calculated Responsive Bid (LCRB) has signed the contract and furnished the performance security, but in no case later than the expiration of the bid security validity period indicated in **ITB** Clause 0.

- 18.4. Upon signing and execution of the contract pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0, and the posting of the performance security pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0, the successful Bidder's bid security will be discharged, but in no case later than the bid security validity period as indicated in the **ITB** Clause 0.
- 18.5. The bid security may be forfeited:
- (a) if a Bidder:
 - (i) withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified in **ITB** Clause 0;
 - (ii) does not accept the correction of errors pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0;
 - (iii) has a finding against the veracity of any of the documents submitted as stated in **ITB** Clause 29.2;
 - (iv) submission of eligibility requirements containing false information or falsified documents;
 - (v) submission of bids that contain false information or falsified documents, or the concealment of such information in the bids in order to influence the outcome of eligibility screening or any other stage of the public bidding;
 - (vi) allowing the use of one's name, or using the name of another for purposes of public bidding;
 - (vii) withdrawal of a bid, or refusal to accept an award, or enter into contract with the Government without justifiable cause, after the Bidder had been adjudged as having submitted the LCRB;
 - (viii) refusal or failure to post the required performance security within the prescribed time;
 - (ix) refusal to clarify or validate in writing its bid during postqualification within a period of seven (7) calendar days from receipt of the request for clarification;
 - (x) any documented attempt by a Bidder to unduly influence the outcome of the bidding in his favor;
 - (xi) failure of the potential joint venture partners to enter into the joint venture after the bid is declared successful; or
 - (xii) all other acts that tend to defeat the purpose of the competitive bidding, such as habitually withdrawing from bidding, submitting late

Bids or patently insufficient bid, for at least three (3) times within a year, except for valid reasons.

(b) if the successful Bidder:

- (i) fails to sign the contract in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0; or
- (ii) fails to furnish performance security in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0.

19. Format and Signing of Bids

- 19.1. Bidders shall submit their bids through their duly authorized representative using the appropriate forms provided in Section IX. Bidding Forms on or before the deadline specified in the **ITB** Clauses 0 in two (2) separate bid documents, and which shall be submitted simultaneously. The first shall contain the technical component of the bid, including the eligibility requirements under **ITB** Clause 0, and the second shall contain the financial component of the bid. This shall also be observed for each lot in the case of lot procurement.
- 19.2. Forms as mentioned in **ITB** Clause 0 must be completed without any alterations to their format, and no substitute form shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 19.3. The Bidder shall prepare and submit an original of the first and second envelopes as described in **ITB** Clauses 0 and 0. In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the first and second envelopes. In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 19.4. Each and every page of the Bid Form, including the Schedule of Prices, under Section VIII hereof, shall be signed by the duly authorized representative/s of the Bidder. Failure to do so shall be a ground for the rejection of the bid.
- 19.5. Any interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the duly authorized representative/s of the Bidder.

20. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 20.1. Bidders shall enclose their original eligibility and technical documents described in **ITB** Clause 0 in one sealed envelope marked "ORIGINAL TECHNICAL COMPONENT", and the original of their financial component in another sealed envelope marked (note) "ORIGINAL FINANCIAL COMPONENT", sealing them all in an outer envelope marked note "ORIGINAL BID".
- 20.2. Each copy of the first and second shall be similarly sealed duly marking in the inner envelopes as "COPY NO. ___ TECHNICAL COMPONENT" and "COPY NO. ___ FINANCIAL COMPONENT" and the last page as "COPY NO. ___ ", respectively. These envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single envelope.

- 20.3. The original and the number of copies of the Bid as indicated in the **BDS** shall be typed or written in ink and shall be signed by the Bidder or its duly authorized representative/s.
- 20.4. All envelopes shall:
- (a) contain the name of the contract to be bid in capital letters;
- (b) bear the name and address of the Bidder in capital letters;
- (c) be addressed to the Procuring Entity's BAC in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0;
- (d) bear the specific identification of this bidding process indicated in the **ITB** Clause 0; and
- (e) bear a warning "DO NOT OPEN BEFORE..." the date and time for the opening of bids, in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0.
- 20.5. Bid envelopes that are not properly sealed and stamped, as required in the bidding documents, shall not be rejected, but the Bidder or its duly authorized representative shall acknowledge such condition of the bid as submitted. The BAC or the Procuring Entity shall assume no responsibility for the misplacement of the contents of the improperly sealed or marked bid, or for its premature opening.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

21. Deadline for Submission of Bids

Bids must be received by the Procuring Entity's BAC at the address and on or before the date and time indicated in the **BDS**.

22. Late Bids

Any bid submitted after the deadline for submission and receipt of bids prescribed by the Procuring Entity, pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0, shall be declared "Late" and shall not be accepted by the Procuring Entity. The BAC shall record in the minutes of bid submission and opening, the Bidder's name, its representative and the time the late bid was submitted.

23. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

23.1. The Bidder may modify its bid after it has been submitted; provided that the modification is received by the Procuring Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission and receipt of bids. The Bidder shall not be allowed to retrieve its original bid, but shall be allowed to submit another bid equally sealed and properly identified in accordance with ITB Clause 20, linked to its original bid marked as "TECHNICAL MODIFICATION" or "FINANCIAL MODIFICATION" and stamped "received" by the BAC. Bid modifications received after the applicable deadline shall not be considered and shall be returned to the Bidder unopened.

- 23.2. A Bidder may, through a Letter of Withdrawal, withdraw its bid after it has been submitted, for valid and justifiable reason; provided that the Letter of Withdrawal is received by the Procuring Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission and receipt of bids. The Letter of Withdrawal must be executed by the duly authorized representative of the Bidder identified in the Omnibus Sworn Statement, a copy of which should be attached to the letter.
- 23.3. Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders. A Bidder, who has acquired the bidding documents, may also express its intention not to participate in the bidding through a letter which should reach and be stamped by the BAC before the deadline for submission and receipt of bids. A Bidder that withdraws its bid shall not be permitted to submit another bid, directly or indirectly, for the same contract.
- 23.4. No bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of bids. No bid may be withdrawn in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Financial Bid Form. Withdrawal of a bid during this interval shall result in the forfeiture of the Bidder's bid security, pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0, and the imposition of administrative, civil and criminal sanctions as prescribed by RA 9184 and its IRR.

24. Opening and Preliminary Examination of Bids

- 24.1 The BAC shall open the bids in public, immediately after the deadline for the submission and receipt of bids, as specified in the <u>BDS</u>. In case the Bids cannot be opened as scheduled due to justifiable reasons, the BAC shall take custody of the Bids submitted and reschedule the opening of Bids on the next working day or at the soonest possible time through the issuance of a Notice of Postponement to be posted in the PhilGEPS website and the website of the Procuring Entity concerned.
- 24.2. Unless otherwise specified in the <u>BDS</u>, the BAC shall open the first bid envelopes and determine each Bidder's compliance with the documents prescribed in **ITB** Clause 0, using a non-discretionary "pass/fail" criterion. If a Bidder submits the required document, it shall be rated "passed" for that particular requirement. In this regard, bids that fail to include any requirement r are incomplete or patently insufficient shall be considered as "failed". Otherwise, the BAC shall rate the said first bid envelope as "passed".
- 24.3. Unless otherwise specified in the <u>BDS</u>, immediately after determining compliance with the requirements in the first envelope, the BAC shall forthwith open the second bid envelope of each remaining eligible bidder whose first bid documents was rated "passed". The second envelope of each complying bidder shall be opened within the same day. In case one or more of the requirements in the second e document of a particular bid is missing, incomplete or patently insufficient, and/or if the submitted total bid price exceeds the ABC unless otherwise provided in **ITB** Clause 0, the BAC shall rate the bid concerned as "failed". Only bids that are determined to contain all the bid requirements for both components shall be rated "passed" and shall immediately be considered for evaluation and comparison.

- 24.4. Letters of Withdrawal shall be read out and recorded during bid opening, and the envelope containing the corresponding withdrawn bid shall be returned to the Bidder unopened.
- 24.5. All members of the BAC who are present during bid opening shall initial every page of the original copies of all bids received and opened.
- 24.6. In the case of an eligible foreign bidder as described in **ITB** Clause 5, the following Class "A" Documents may be substituted with the appropriate equivalent documents, if any, issued by the country of the foreign Bidder concerned, which shall likewise be uploaded and maintained in the PhilGEPS in accordance with Section 8.5.2 of the IRR:
- (a) Registration certificate from the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) for sole proprietorship, or CDA for cooperatives;
- (b) Mayor's/Business permit issued by the local government where the principal place of business of the bidder is located; and
- (c) Audited Financial Statements showing, among others, the prospective bidder's total and current assets and liabilities stamped "received" by the Bureau of Internal Revenue or its duly accredited and authorized institutions, for the preceding calendar year which should not be earlier than two years from the date of bid submission.
- 24.7. Each partner of a joint venture agreement shall likewise submit the requirements in **ITB** Clause 12.1(a)(i). Submission of documents required under **ITB** Clauses 12.1(a)(ii) to 12.1(a)(iii) by any of the joint venture partners constitutes compliance.
- 24.8. The Procuring Entity shall prepare the minutes of the proceedings of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: (a) names of Bidders, their bid price (per lot, if applicable, and/or including discount, if any), bid security, findings of preliminary examination, and whether there is a withdrawal or modification; and (b) attendance sheet. The BAC members shall sign the abstract of bids as read.
- 24.9. The bidders or their duly authorized representatives may attend the opening of bids. The BAC shall ensure the integrity, security, and confidentiality of all submitted bids. The Abstract of Bids as read and the minutes of the bid opening shall be made available to the public upon written request and payment of a specified fee to recover cost of materials.
- 24.10. To ensure transparency and accurate representation of the bid submission, the BAC Secretariat shall notify in writing all bidders whose bids it has received through its PhilGEPS-registered physical address or official e-mail address. The notice shall be issued within seven (7) calendar days from the date of the bid opening.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

25. Process to be Confidential

- 25.1. Members of the BAC, including its staff and personnel, as well as its Secretariat and TWG, are prohibited from making or accepting any kind of communication with any bidder regarding the evaluation of their bids until the issuance of the Notice of Award, unless otherwise allowed in the case of ITB Clause 26.
- 25.2. Any effort by a bidder to influence the Procuring Entity in the Procuring Entity's decision in respect of bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award will result in the rejection of the Bidder's bid.

26. Clarification of Bids

To assist in the evaluation, comparison, and post-qualification of the bids, the Procuring Entity may ask in writing any Bidder for a clarification of its bid. All responses to requests for clarification shall be in writing. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its bid and that is not in response to a request by the Procuring Entity shall not be considered.

27. Domestic Preference

- 27.1. Unless otherwise stated in the **BDS**, the Procuring Entity will grant a margin of preference for the purpose of comparison of bids in accordance with the following:
- (a) The preference shall be applied when the lowest Foreign Bid is lower than the lowest bid offered by a Domestic Bidder.
- (b) For evaluation purposes, the lowest Foreign Bid shall be increased by fifteen percent (15%).
- (c) In the event that the lowest bid offered by a Domestic Bidder does not exceed the lowest Foreign Bid as increased, then the Procuring Entity shall award the contract to the Domestic Bidder at the amount of the lowest Foreign Bid.
- (d) If the Domestic Bidder refuses to accept the award of contract at the amount of the Foreign Bid within two (2) calendar days from receipt of written advice from the BAC, the Procuring Entity shall award to the bidder offering the Foreign Bid, subject to post-qualification and submission of all the documentary requirements under these Bidding Documents.
- 27.2. A Bidder may be granted preference as a Domestic Bidder subject to the certification from the DTI that the Bidder is offering unmanufactured articles, materials or supplies of the growth or production of the Philippines, or manufactured articles, materials, or supplies manufactured or to be manufactured in the Philippines substantially from articles, materials, or supplies of the growth, production, or manufacture, as the case may be, of the Philippines.

28. Detailed Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 28.1. The Procuring Entity will undertake the detailed evaluation and comparison of bids which have passed the opening and preliminary examination of bids, pursuant to **ITB** Clause 0, in order to determine the Lowest Calculated Bid.
- 28.2. The Lowest Calculated Bid shall be determined in two steps:
- (a) The detailed evaluation of the financial component of the bids, to establish the correct calculated prices of the bids; and
- (b) The ranking of the total bid prices as so calculated from the lowest to the highest. The bid with the lowest price shall be identified as the Lowest Calculated Bid.
- 28.3. The Procuring Entity's BAC shall immediately conduct a detailed evaluation of all bids rated "passed," using non-discretionary pass/fail criteria. The BAC shall consider the following in the evaluation of bids:
- (a) <u>Completeness of the bid.</u> Unless the <u>BDS</u> allows partial bids, bids not addressing or providing all of the required items in the Schedule of Requirements including, where applicable, Schedule of Prices, shall be considered non-responsive and, thus, automatically disqualified. In this regard, where a required item is provided, but no price is indicated, the same shall be considered as non-responsive, but specifying a zero (0) or a dash (-) for the said item would mean that it is being offered for free to the Procuring Entity, except those required by law or regulations to be provided for; and
- (b) <u>Arithmetical corrections.</u> Consider computational errors and omissions to enable proper comparison of all eligible bids. It may also consider bid modifications. Any adjustment shall be calculated in monetary terms to determine the calculated prices.
- 28.4. Based on the detailed evaluation of bids, those that comply with the above-mentioned requirements shall be ranked in the ascending order of their total calculated bid prices, as evaluated and corrected for computational errors, discounts and other modifications, to identify the Lowest Calculated Bid. Total calculated bid prices, as evaluated and corrected for computational errors, discounts and other modifications, which exceed the ABC shall not be considered, unless otherwise indicated in the **BDS**.
- 28.5. The Procuring Entity's evaluation of bids shall be based on the bid price quoted in the Bid Form, which includes the Schedule of Prices.
- 28.6. Bids shall be evaluated on an equal footing to ensure fair competition. For this purpose, all bidders shall be required to include in their bids the cost of all taxes, such as, but not limited to, value added tax (VAT), income tax, local taxes, and other fiscal levies and duties which shall be itemized in the bid form and reflected in the detailed estimates. Such bids, including said taxes, shall be the basis for bid evaluation and comparison.
- 28.7. If so indicated pursuant to **ITB** Clause 1.2, Bids are being invited for individual lots or for any combination thereof, provided that all Bids and combinations of Bids shall be received by the same deadline and opened and

evaluated simultaneously so as to determine the Bid or combination of Bids offering the lowest calculated cost to the Procuring Entity. Bid prices quoted shall correspond to all items specified for each lot and to all quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bid Security as required by **ITB** Clause 18 shall be submitted for each contract (lot) separately. The basis for evaluation of lots is specified in BDS Clause 28.3.

29. Post-Qualification

- 29.1. The BAC shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is evaluated as having submitted the Lowest Calculated Bid complies with and is responsive to all the requirements and conditions specified in **ITB** Clauses 5, 0, and 0.
- 29.2. Within a non-extendible period of five (5) calendar days from receipt by the bidder of the notice from the BAC that it submitted the Lowest Calculated Bid, the Bidder shall submit its latest income and business tax returns filed and paid through the BIR Electronic Filing and Payment System (eFPS) and other appropriate licenses and permits required by law and stated in the **BDS**.

Failure to submit any of the post-qualification requirements on time, or a finding against the veracity thereof, shall disqualify the bidder for award. Provided in the event that a finding against the veracity of any of the documents submitted is made, it shall cause the forfeiture of the bid security in accordance with Section 69 of the IRR of RA 9184.

- 29.3. The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted pursuant to **ITB** Clauses 0 and 0, as well as other information as the Procuring Entity deems necessary and appropriate, using a non-discretionary "pass/fail" criterion, which shall be completed within a period of twelve (12) calendar days.
- 29.4. If the BAC determines that the Bidder with the Lowest Calculated Bid passes all the criteria for post-qualification, it shall declare the said bid as the LCRB, and recommend to the HoPE the award of contract to the said Bidder at its submitted price or its calculated bid price, whichever is lower.
- 29.5. A negative determination shall result in rejection of the Bidder's Bid, in which event the Procuring Entity shall proceed to the next Lowest Calculated Bid with a fresh period to make a similar determination of that Bidder's capabilities to perform satisfactorily. If the second Bidder, however, fails the post qualification, the procedure for post qualification shall be repeated for the Bidder with the next Lowest Calculated Bid, and so on until the LCRB is determined for recommendation for contract award.
- 29.6. Within a period not exceeding fifteen (15) calendar days from the determination by the BAC of the LCRB and the recommendation to award the contract, the HoPE or his duly authorized representative shall approve or disapprove the said recommendation.
- 29.7. In the event of disapproval, which shall be based on valid, reasonable, and justifiable grounds as provided for under Section 41 of the IRR of RA 9184, the HoPE shall notify the BAC and the Bidder in writing of such decision and the grounds for it.

When applicable, the BAC shall conduct a post-qualification of the Bidder with the next Lowest Calculated Bid. A request for reconsideration may be filed by the bidder with the HoPE in accordance with Section 37.1.3 of the IRR of RA 9184.

30. Reservation Clause

- 30.1. Notwithstanding the eligibility or post-qualification of a Bidder, the Procuring Entity concerned reserves the right to review its qualifications at any stage of the procurement process if it has reasonable grounds to believe that a misrepresentation has been made by the said Bidder, or that there has been a change in the Bidder's capability to undertake the project from the time it submitted its eligibility requirements. Should such review uncover any misrepresentation made in the eligibility and bidding requirements, statements or documents, or any changes in the situation of the Bidder which will affect its capability to undertake the project so that it fails the preset eligibility or bid evaluation criteria, the Procuring Entity shall consider the said Bidder as ineligible and shall disqualify it from submitting a bid or from obtaining an award or contract.
- 30.2. Based on the following grounds, the Procuring Entity reserves the right to reject any and all bids, declare a Failure of Bidding at any time prior to the contract award, or not to award the contract, without thereby incurring any liability, and make no assurance that a contract shall be entered into as a result of the bidding:
- (a) If there is *prima facie* evidence of collusion between appropriate public officers or employees of the Procuring Entity, or between the BAC and any of the Bidders, or if the collusion is between or among the bidders themselves, or between a Bidder and a third party, including any act which restricts, suppresses or nullifies or tends to restrict, suppress or nullify competition;
- (b) If the Procuring Entity's BAC is found to have failed in following the prescribed bidding procedures; or
- (c) For any justifiable and reasonable ground where the award of the contract will not redound to the benefit of the GOP as follows:
 - (i) If the physical and economic conditions have significantly changed so as to render the project no longer economically, financially or technically feasible as determined by the HoPE;
 - (ii) If the project is no longer necessary as determined by the HoPE; and
 - (iii) If the source of funds for the project has been withheld or reduced through no fault of the Procuring Entity.
- 30.3. In addition, the Procuring Entity may likewise declare a failure of bidding when:
- (a) No bids are received;
- (b) All prospective Bidders are declared ineligible;

- (c) All bids fail to comply with all the bid requirements or fail post-qualification; or
- (d) The bidder with the LCRB refuses, without justifiable cause to accept the award of contract, and no award is made in accordance with Section 40 of the IRR of RA 9184.

F. Award of Contract

31. Contract Award

- 30.1. Subject to **ITB** Clause 0, the HoPE or its duly authorized representative shall award the contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the LCRB.
- 30.2. Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Procuring Entity shall notify the successful Bidder in writing that its bid has been accepted, through a Notice of Award duly received by the Bidder or its representative personally or sent by registered mail or electronically, receipt of which must be confirmed in writing within two (2) days by the Bidder with the LCRB and submitted personally or sent by registered mail or electronically to the Procuring Entity.
- 30.3. Notwithstanding the issuance of the Notice of Award, award of contract shall be subject to the following conditions:
- (a) Submission of the following documents within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award:
 - (i) Valid JVA, if applicable; or
 - (ii) In the case of procurement by a Philippine Foreign Service Office or Post, the PhilGEPS Registration Number of the winning foreign Bidder;
- (b) Posting of the performance security in accordance with **ITB** Clause 0;
- (c) Signing of the contract as provided in ITB Clause 0; and
- (d) Approval by higher authority, if required, as provided in Section 37.3 of the IRR of RA 9184.
- 30.4. At the time of contract award, the Procuring Entity shall not increase or decrease the quantity of goods originally specified in Section VI. Schedule of Requirements.

32. Signing of the Contract

- 32.1. At the same time as the Procuring Entity notifies the successful Bidder that its bid has been accepted, the Procuring Entity shall send the Contract Form to the Bidder, which contract has been provided in the Bidding Documents, incorporating therein all agreements between the parties.
- 32.2. Within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award, the successful Bidder shall post the required performance security, sign and date the contract and return it to the Procuring Entity.

- 32.3. The Procuring Entity shall enter into contract with the successful Bidder within the same ten (10) calendar day period provided that all the documentary requirements are complied with.
- 32.4. The following documents shall form part of the contract:
- (a) Contract Agreement;
- (b) Bidding Documents;
- (c) Winning bidder's bid, including the Technical and Financial Proposals, and all other documents/statements submitted (*e.g.*, bidder's response to request for clarifications on the bid), including corrections to the bid, if any, resulting from the Procuring Entity's bid evaluation;
- (d) Performance Security;
- (e) Notice of Award of Contract; and
- (f) Other contract documents that may be required by existing laws and/or specified in the **BDS**.

33. Performance Security

- 33.1. To guarantee the faithful performance by the winning Bidder of its obligations under the contract, it shall post a performance security within a maximum period of ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the Notice of Award from the Procuring Entity and in no case later than the signing of the contract.
- 33.2. The Performance Security shall be denominated in Philippine Pesos and posted in favor of the Procuring Entity in an amount not less than the percentage of the total contract price in accordance with the following schedule:

Form of Performance Security	Amount of Performance Security (Not less than the Percentage of the Total Contract Price)
 (a) Cash or cashier's/manager's check issued by a Universal or Commercial Bank. For biddings conducted by the LGUs, the Cashier's/Manager's Check may be issued by other banks certified by the BSP as authorized to issue such financial instrument. 	Five percent (5%)

(b) Bank draft/guarantee or irrevocable letter of credit issued by a Universal or Commercial Bank: Provided, however, that it shall be confirmed or authenticated by a Universal or Commercial Bank, if issued by a foreign bank. For biddings conducted by the LGUs, the Bank Draft/ Guarantee or Irrevocable Letter of Credit may be issued by other banks certified by the BSP as authorized	
to issue such financial instrument. (c) Surety bond callable upon demand issued by a surety or insurance company duly certified by the Insurance Commission as authorized to issue such security.	Thirty percent (30%)

33.3. Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the above-mentioned requirement shall constitute sufficient ground for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security, in which event the Procuring Entity shall have a fresh period to initiate and complete the post qualification of the second Lowest Calculated Bid. The procedure shall be repeated until the LCRB is identified and selected for recommendation of contract award. However if no Bidder passed post-qualification, the BAC shall declare the bidding a failure and conduct a re-bidding with readvertisement, if necessary.

34. Notice to Proceed

Within seven (7) calendar days from the date of approval of the contract by the appropriate government approving authority, the Procuring Entity shall issue the Notice to Proceed (NTP) together with a copy or copies of the approved contract to the successful Bidder. All notices called for by the terms of the contract shall be effective only at the time of receipt thereof by the successful Bidder.

35. Protest Mechanism

Decisions of the procuring entity at any stage of the procurement process may be questioned in accordance with Section 55 of the IRR of RA 9184.

SECTION III. BID DATA SHEET

ITB Clause			
1.1	The PROCURING ENTITY is National Library of the Philippines		
1.2	The lot(s) and reference is/are: PB21-01 SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF FOREIGN EBOOKS FOR THE NLP – REFERENCE DIVISION		
2		ding Source is:	
	The Government of the Philippines (GOP) through the authoriz appropriation for FY 2021 General Appropriation Act (GAA) in t amount of One Million One Hundred Thousand Pes (Php1,100,000.00).		
	Lot	Item Description	Approved Budget
	No.		Contract (ABC)
	1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php203,192.00
	2	Self-help eBooks	Php251,000.00
	3	Scholarly eBooks	Php645,808.00
		TOTAL ABC	Php1,100,000.00
		e of the Project is SUPPLY AND	
		S FOR THE NLP – REFEREN	CE DIVISION
5.1		er instructions	
5.2		is restricted to eligible bidders as o	
5.4		-	Two (2) years from the submission
) that is/are similar to this Project,
	equivalent to at least fifty percent (50%) of the Approved Budget of the		
	Contract to be bid. Such contract must be part of, or included in, the		
	Statement under Item 12.1 (a)(iii) hereof.		
		contract(s) includes project for the	EBooks/E-Resources
5.5	No further instructions		
6.3	No further instructions		
7		er instructions	
8.1		racting allowed	
8.2	Not appl		N. 1 44 2024 . 40 00 AN
9.1		P will hold a Pre-Bid Conference o	*
		videoconferencing, which shall be	•
		erest to <u>bac@nlp.gov.ph</u> with sub	
		nce of Public Bidding No. 21-01. T	
	_	through email up to March 23, 20	ozi or i day before the bid
opening.			
10.1	The Procuring Entity's address is:		
	N. A. a. I. C. a. a. C. A. a. D. C. a. a. a.		
National Library of the Philippines T.M. Kalaw St. Ermita, Manila			es
	Ira B. Albalos Marie Joy H. Bestoir Philmarc Jacinto		

	BAC Secretariat Tel. No.: (02) 5336-7200 loc. 406 / 408		
	Email: bac@nlp.gov.ph		
12.1	No further instructions.		
12.1(a)(i)	For corpo	orations/partnerships: the follow	ing may also be submitted: latest
12.1(a)(1)			laws, or amendments thereto, duly
		by the Securities and Exchange	
12.1(a)(iii)		-	npleted government and private
			within two (2) years prior to the
	deadline f	for the submission and receipt of	bids.
12.1(b)(iii)			y with the 2004 Rules on Notarial
			e of identity to the following: (I)
			cial agency bearing the photograph
			rt, SSS ID, GSIS e-card, etc.; and
	` /		edible witness not privy to the
			is personally known to the notary
			dividual and shows to the notary
13.1		cumentary identification.	
13.1(b)		er instructions	
13.1(0)		BC is One Million One	Hundred Thousand Pesos
13.2		0,000.00)	Hundred Thousand Tesos
	Lot	Item Description	Approved Budget
	No.	item Description	Contract (ABC)
	1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php203,192.00
	2	Self-help eBooks	Php251,000.00
	3	Scholarly eBooks	Php645,808.00
		TOTAL ABC	Php1,100,000.00
	Any bid	with a financial component ex	ceeding this amount shall not be
	accepted.		
15.4(a(iii)		er instructions	
15.4(b)	No further instructions		
	The bid prices for Goods supplied from outside of the Philippines shall be		
16.1(b)		prices for Goods supplied from	outside of the Philippines shall be
16.1(b)	quoted in	prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos.	outside of the Philippines shall be
16.1(b) 16.3	quoted in No furthe	prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos.	
16.1(b)	quoted in No furthe Bids will	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. er instructions be valid within a period of 12	outside of the Philippines shall be 0 calendar days from the date of
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening o	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. or instructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids.	0 calendar days from the date of
16.1(b) 16.3	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening o The bid s	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the Ni	
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. The instructions The beautiful within a period of 12 of bids. The security issued in favor of the Nich amount:	0 calendar days from the date of
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the Nid amount: ABC or	0 calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. The instructions The beautiful within a period of 12 of bids. The security issued in favor of the Nich amount:	0 calendar days from the date of
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the	Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions Be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Becurity issued in favor of the NI d amount: ABC or Item Description	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot No. 1	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the NI amount: ABC or Item Description Kids and Teens eBooks	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security Php4,063.84
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot No.	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. The instructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the Nidamount: ABC or Item Description Kids and Teens eBooks Self-help eBooks	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security Php4,063.84 Php5,020.00
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot No. 1 2 3	Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions Be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Becurity issued in favor of the Nidamount: ABC or Item Description Kids and Teens eBooks Self-help eBooks Scholarly eBooks	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security Php4,063.84 Php5,020.00 Php12,916.16
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot No. 1 2 3 if bid s	Prices for Goods supplied from Philippine Pesos. The instructions be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the Nidamount: ABC or Item Description Kids and Teens eBooks Self-help eBooks	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security Php4,063.84 Php5,020.00 Php12,916.16 s/manager's check, bank, bank
16.1(b) 16.3 17.1	quoted in No furthe Bids will opening of The bid s forms and 2% of the Lot No. 1 2 3 if bid s	Philippine Pesos. Prinstructions Be valid within a period of 12 of bids. Security issued in favor of the Nidamount: ABC or Item Description Kids and Teens eBooks Self-help eBooks Scholarly eBooks security is in cash, cashier's	O calendar days from the date of LP shall be either in the following Bid Security Php4,063.84 Php5,020.00 Php12,916.16 s/manager's check, bank, bank

	2. 5% of	f the ABC or	
	Lot No.	Item Description	Bid Security
	1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php10,159.60
	2	Self-help eBooks	Php12,550.00
	3	Scholarly eBooks	Php32,290.40
		ecurity is in Surety Bond accomp e Commission that insurance comp	
	respect to	combination of the foregoing proportion total amount of security; or ecomplished Bid-Securing Declarate	
	form)		
18.2		security shall be valid within a pe of opening of bids.	eriod of 120 calendar days from
20.1	No furthe	er instructions	
20.3		lder shall submit one (1) original a second components of its bid.	nd One (1) duplicate copy of the
		soft copy of technical (in PDF) an raphic Information") requirement	•
21		ress for submission of bids is at the law St., Ermita, Manila.	e Ground Floor, NLP Building
		lline for submission of bids is on of March 24, 2021. Late bids shall not	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
24.1	The place Ermita,	e of bid opening is at the 2nd Floor Manila.	; NLP Building, T.M. Kalaw St
		and time of bid opening is on Mar	ch 24, 2021 at 10:01 AM
24.2	No further instructions		
27.1		er instructions	
28.3		er instructions	
28.3(b)	Bid mod	ification is allowed in case of arithr	netical corrections only.
28.4	No furth	er instructions	
29.2(b)		returns filed and taxes paid through System (EFPS) shall be accepted.	gh the BIR Electronic Filing and
		The latest income and business tax hs preceding the date of bid submis	
29.2(d)	No furthe	er instructions	
32.4(g)	No further instructions		

Section IV. General Conditions of Contract

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>1.</u>	DEFINITIONS 38
2.	CORRUPT, FRAUDULENT, COLLUSIVE, AND COERCIVE PRACTICES 39
<u>3.</u>	INSPECTION AND AUDIT BY THE FUNDING SOURCE 40
<u>4.</u>	GOVERNING LAW AND LANGUAGE 40
<u>5.</u>	NOTICES 40
<u>6.</u>	SCOPE OF CONTRACT 40
<u>7.</u>	SUBCONTRACTING 41
8.	PROCURING ENTITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 41
<u>9.</u>	PRICES 41
<u>10.</u>	PAYMENT 41
<u>11.</u>	ADVANCE PAYMENT AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 42
<u>12.</u>	TAXES AND DUTIES 43
<u>13.</u>	PERFORMANCE SECURITY 43
<u>14.</u>	USE OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION 43
<u>15.</u>	STANDARDS 44
<u>16.</u>	INSPECTION AND TESTS 44
<u>17.</u>	WARRANTY 44
<u>18.</u>	DELAYS IN THE SUPPLIER'S PERFORMANCE 45
<u> 19.</u>	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 45
<u>20.</u>	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 46
<u>21.</u>	LIABILITY OF THE SUPPLIER 46
<u>22.</u>	FORCE MAJEURE 46
<u>23.</u>	TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 47
<u>24.</u>	TERMINATION FOR INSOLVENCY 47
<u>25.</u>	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 48
<u>26.</u>	TERMINATION FOR UNLAWFUL ACTS 48
<u>27.</u>	PROCEDURES FOR TERMINATION OF CONTRACTS 48
<u>28.</u>	ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS 49
<u> 29.</u>	CONTRACT AMENDMENT 50
<u>30.</u>	APPLICATION 50

1. **Definitions**

- 1.1. In this Contract, the following terms shall be interpreted as indicated:
 - (a) "The Contract" means the agreement entered into between the Procuring Entity and the Supplier, as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the parties, including all attachments and appendices thereto and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
 - (b) "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations.
 - (c) "The Goods" means all of the supplies, equipment, machinery, spare parts, other materials and/or general support services which the Supplier is required to provide to the Procuring Entity under the Contract.
 - (d) "The Services" means those services ancillary to the supply of the Goods, such as transportation and insurance, and any other incidental services, such as installation, commissioning, provision of technical assistance, training, and other such obligations of the Supplier covered under the Contract.
 - (e) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract contained in this Section.
 - (f) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
 - (g) "The Procuring Entity" means the organization purchasing the Goods, as named in the <u>SCC</u>.
 - (h) "The Procuring Entity's country" is the Philippines.
 - (i) "The Supplier" means the individual contractor, manufacturer distributor, or firm supplying/manufacturing the Goods and Services under this Contract and named in the <u>SCC</u>.
 - (i) The "Funding Source" means the organization named in the SCC.
 - (k) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place or places named in the **SCC**.
 - (l) "Day" means calendar day.
 - (m) The "Effective Date" of the contract will be the date of signing the contract, however the Supplier shall commence performance of its obligations only upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed and copy of the approved contract.
 - (n) "Verified Report" refers to the report submitted by the Implementing Unit to the HoPE setting forth its findings as to the existence of grounds or causes for termination and explicitly stating its recommendation for the issuance of a Notice to Terminate.

2. Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, and Coercive Practices

- 2.1. Unless otherwise provided in the <u>SCC</u>, the Procuring Entity as well as the bidders, contractors, or suppliers shall observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of this Contract. In pursuance of this policy, the Procuring Entity:
- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" means behavior on the part of officials in the public or private sectors by which they improperly and unlawfully enrich themselves, others, or induce others to do so, by misusing the position in which they are placed, and it includes the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of any such official in the procurement process or in contract execution; entering, on behalf of the Government, into any contract or transaction manifestly and grossly disadvantageous to the same, whether or not the public officer profited or will profit thereby, and similar acts as provided in Republic Act 3019.
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Procuring Entity, and includes collusive practices among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels and to deprive the Procuring Entity of the benefits of free and open competition.
 - (iii) "collusive practices" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of the Procuring Entity, designed to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels.
 - (iv) "coercive practices" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons, or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of a contract;
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is
- (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to an administrative proceedings or investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an administrative proceedings or investigation of the Procuring Entity or any foreign government/foreign or international financing institution into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the administrative proceedings or investigation or from pursuing such proceedings or investigation; or
- (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the inspection and audit rights of the Procuring Entity or any foreign government/foreign or international financing institution herein.

- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in any of the practices mentioned in this Clause for purposes of competing for the contract.
- (c) Further the Funding Source, Borrower or Procuring Entity, as appropriate, will seek to impose the maximum civil, administrative and/or criminal penalties available under the applicable law on individuals and organizations deemed to be involved with any of the practices mentioned in **GCC** Clause 0.

3. Inspection and Audit by the Funding Source

The Supplier shall permit the Funding Source to inspect the Supplier's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Supplier and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Funding Source, if so required by the Funding Source.

4. Governing Law and Language

- 4.1. This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Republic of the Philippines.
- 4.2. This Contract has been executed in the English language, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract. All correspondence and other documents pertaining to this Contract exchanged by the parties shall be written in English.

5. Notices

- 5.1. Any notice, request, or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request, or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when received by the concerned party, either in person or through an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent by registered mail, telex, telegram, or facsimile to such Party at the address specified in the <u>SCC</u>, which shall be effective when delivered and duly received or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.
- 5.2. A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice of such change pursuant to the provisions listed in the **SCC** for **GCC** Clause 0

6. Scope of Contract

- 6.1. The Goods and Related Services to be provided shall be as specified in Section VI. Schedule of Requirements.
- 6.2. This Contract shall include all such items, although not specifically mentioned, that can be reasonably inferred as being required for its completion as if such items were expressly mentioned herein. Any additional requirements for the completion of this Contract shall be provided in the **SCC**.

7. Subcontracting

- 7.1. Subcontracting of any portion of the Goods, if allowed in the **BDS**, does not relieve the Supplier of any liability or obligation under this Contract. The Supplier will be responsible for the acts, defaults, and negligence of any subcontractor, its agents, servants or workmen as fully as if these were the Supplier's own acts, defaults, or negligence, or those of its agents, servants or workmen.
- 7.2. If subcontracting is allowed, the Supplier may identify its subcontractor during contract implementation. Subcontractors disclosed and identified during the bidding may be changed during the implementation of this Contract. In either case, subcontractors must submit the documentary requirements under **ITB** Clause 12 and comply with the eligibility criteria specified in the **BDS**. In the event that any subcontractor is found by the Procuring Entity to be ineligible, the subcontracting of such portion of the Goods shall be disallowed.

8. Procuring Entity's Responsibilities

- 8.1. Whenever the performance of the obligations in this Contract requires that the Supplier obtain permits, approvals, import, and other licenses from local public authorities, the Procuring Entity shall, if so needed by the Supplier, make its best effort to assist the Supplier in complying with such requirements in a timely and expeditious manner.
- 8.2. The Procuring Entity shall pay all costs involved in the performance of its responsibilities in accordance with GCC Clause 0.

9. Prices

- 9.1. For the given scope of work in this Contract as awarded, all bid prices are considered fixed prices, and therefore not subject to price escalation during contract implementation, except under extraordinary circumstances and upon prior approval of the GPPB in accordance with Section 61 of R.A. 9184 and its IRR or except as provided in this Clause.
- 9.2. Prices charged by the Supplier for Goods delivered and/or services performed under this Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any change in price resulting from a Change Order issued in accordance with **GCC** Clause 0.

10. Payment

- 10.1. Payments shall be made only upon a certification by the HoPE to the effect that the Goods have been rendered or delivered in accordance with the terms of this Contract and have been duly inspected and accepted. Except with the prior approval of the President no payment shall be made for services not yet rendered or for supplies and materials not yet delivered under this Contract. Ten percent (10%) of the amount of each payment shall be retained by the Procuring Entity to cover the Supplier's warranty obligations under this Contract as described in **GCC** Clause 0.
- 10.2. The Supplier's request(s) for payment shall be made to the Procuring Entity in writing, accompanied by an invoice describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered

and/or Services performed, and by documents submitted pursuant to the SCC provision for GCC Clause 0, and upon fulfillment of other obligations stipulated in this Contract.

- 10.3. Pursuant to **GCC** Clause 0, payments shall be made promptly by the Procuring Entity, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or claim by the Supplier. Payments shall be in accordance with the schedule stated in the <u>SCC</u>.
- 10.4. Unless otherwise provided in the <u>SCC</u>, the currency in which payment is made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be in Philippine Pesos.
- 10.5. Unless otherwise provided in the <u>SCC</u>, payments using Letter of Credit (LC), in accordance with the Guidelines issued by the GPPB, is allowed. For this purpose, the amount of provisional sum is indicated in the <u>SCC</u>. All charges for the opening of the LC and/or incidental expenses thereto shall be for the account of the Supplier.

11. Advance Payment and Terms of Payment

- 11.1. Advance payment shall be made only after prior approval of the President, and shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the Contract amount, unless otherwise directed by the President or in cases allowed under Annex "D" of RA 9184.
- 11.2. All progress payments shall first be charged against the advance payment until the latter has been fully exhausted.
- 11.3. For Goods supplied from abroad, unless otherwise indicated in the <u>SCC</u>, the terms of payment shall be as follows:
- (a) On Contract Signature: Fifteen Percent (15%) of the Contract Price shall be paid within sixty (60) days from signing of the Contract and upon submission of a claim and a bank guarantee for the equivalent amount valid until the Goods are delivered and in the form provided in Section VIII. Bidding Forms.
- (b) On Delivery: Sixty-five percent (65%) of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within sixty (60) days after the date of receipt of the Goods and upon submission of the documents (i) through (vi) specified in the <u>SCC</u> provision on Delivery and Documents.
- (c) On Acceptance: The remaining twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within sixty (60) days after the date of submission of the acceptance and inspection certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Procuring Entity's authorized representative. In the event that no inspection or acceptance certificate is issued by the Procuring Entity's authorized representative within forty five (45) days of the date shown on the delivery receipt, the Supplier shall have the right to claim payment of the remaining twenty percent (20%) subject to the Procuring Entity's own verification of the reason(s) for the failure to issue documents (vii) and (viii) as described in the SCC provision on Delivery and Documents.

12. Taxes and Duties

The Supplier, whether local or foreign, shall be entirely responsible for all the necessary taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed for the completion of this Contract.

13. Performance Security

- 13.1. Within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award from the Procuring Entity but in no case later than the signing of the contract by both parties, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in any the forms prescribed in the **ITB** Clause 0.
- 13.2. The performance security posted in favor of the Procuring Entity shall be forfeited in the event it is established that the winning bidder is in default in any of its obligations under the contract.
- 13.3. The performance security shall remain valid until issuance by the Procuring Entity of the Certificate of Final Acceptance.
- 13.4. The performance security may be released by the Procuring Entity and returned to the Supplier after the issuance of the Certificate of Final Acceptance subject to the following conditions:
- (a) There are no pending claims against the Supplier or the surety company filed by the Procuring Entity;
- (b) The Supplier has no pending claims for labor and materials filed against it; and
- (c) Other terms specified in the **SCC**.
- 13.5. In case of a reduction of the contract value, the Procuring Entity shall allow a proportional reduction in the original performance security, provided that any such reduction is more than ten percent (10%) and that the aggregate of such reductions is not more than fifty percent (50%) of the original performance security.

14. Use of Contract Documents and Information

- 14.1. The Supplier shall not, except for purposes of performing the obligations in this Contract, without the Procuring Entity's prior written consent, disclose this Contract, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample, or information furnished by or on behalf of the Procuring Entity. Any such disclosure shall be made in confidence and shall extend only as far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.
- 14.2. Any document, other than this Contract itself, enumerated in **GCC** Clause 0 remain the property of the Procuring Entity and shall be returned (all copies) to the Procuring Entity on completion of the Supplier's performance under this Contract if so required by the Procuring Entity.

15. Standards

The Goods provided under this Contract shall conform to the standards mentioned in the Section VII. Technical Specifications; and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, to the authoritative standards appropriate to the Goods' country of origin. Such standards shall be the latest issued by the institution concerned.

16. Inspection and Tests

- 16.1. The Procuring Entity or its representative shall have the right to inspect and/or to test the Goods to confirm their conformity to the Contract specifications at no extra cost to the Procuring Entity. The <u>SCC</u> and Section VII. Technical Specifications shall specify what inspections and/or tests the Procuring Entity requires and where they are to be conducted. The Procuring Entity shall notify the Supplier in writing, in a timely manner, of the identity of any representatives retained for these purposes.
- 16.2. If applicable, the inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its subcontractor(s), at point of delivery, and/or at the goods' final destination. If conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its subcontractor(s), all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Procuring Entity. The Supplier shall provide the Procuring Entity with results of such inspections and tests.
- 16.3. The Procuring Entity or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in this Clause provided that the Procuring Entity shall bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
- 16.4. The Procuring Entity may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Procuring Entity, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Procuring Entity, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Clause 0.
- 16.5. The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Procuring Entity or its representative, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under this Contract.

17. Warranty

- 17.1. The Supplier warrants that the Goods supplied under the Contract are new, unused, of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, except when the technical specifications required by the Procuring Entity provides otherwise.
- 17.2. The Supplier further warrants that all Goods supplied under this Contract shall have no defect, arising from design, materials, or workmanship or from any act or omission of the Supplier that may develop under normal use of the supplied Goods in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.

- 17.3. In order to assure that manufacturing defects shall be corrected by the Supplier, a warranty shall be required from the Supplier for a minimum period specified in the **SCC**. The obligation for the warranty shall be covered by, at the Supplier's option, either retention money in an amount equivalent to at least one percent (1%) of every progress payment, or a special bank guarantee equivalent to at least one percent (1%) of the total Contract Price or other such amount if so specified in the **SCC**. The said amounts shall only be released after the lapse of the warranty period specified in the **SCC**; provided, however, that the Supplies delivered are free from patent and latent defects and all the conditions imposed under this Contract have been fully met.
- 17.4. The Procuring Entity shall promptly notify the Supplier in writing of any claims arising under this warranty. Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the <u>SCC</u> and with all reasonable speed, repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, without cost to the Procuring Entity.
- 17.5. If the Supplier, having been notified, fails to remedy the defect(s) within the period specified in **GCC** Clause 0, the Procuring Entity may proceed to take such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Procuring Entity may have against the Supplier under the Contract and under the applicable law.

18. Delays in the Supplier's Performance

- 18.1. Delivery of the Goods and/or performance of Services shall be made by the Supplier in accordance with the time schedule prescribed by the Procuring Entity in Section VI. Schedule of Requirements.
- 18.2. If at any time during the performance of this Contract, the Supplier or its Subcontractor(s) should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods and/or performance of Services, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Procuring Entity in writing of the fact of the delay, its likely duration and its cause(s). As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, and upon causes provided for under GCC Clause 0, the Procuring Entity shall evaluate the situation and may extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of Contract.
- 18.3. Except as provided under **GCC** Clause 0, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to **GCC** Clause 0, unless an extension of time is agreed upon pursuant to **GCC** Clause 0 without the application of liquidated damages.

19. Liquidated Damages

Subject to GCC Clauses 0 and 0, if the Supplier fails to satisfactorily deliver any or all of the Goods and/or to perform the Services within the period(s) specified in this Contract inclusive of duly granted time extensions if any, the Procuring Entity shall, without prejudice to its other remedies under this Contract and under the applicable law, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, the applicable rate of one tenth (1/10) of one (1) percent of the cost of the unperformed portion for every day of delay until actual delivery or performance. The maximum deduction shall be ten percent (10%) of the amount of contract. Once the maximum is reached, the

Procuring Entity may rescind or terminate the Contract pursuant to **GCC** Clause 0, without prejudice to other courses of action and remedies open to it.

20. Settlement of Disputes

- 20.1. If any dispute or difference of any kind whatsoever shall arise between the Procuring Entity and the Supplier in connection with or arising out of this Contract, the parties shall make every effort to resolve amicably such dispute or difference by mutual consultation.
- 20.2. If after thirty (30) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Procuring Entity or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given.
- 20.3. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under this Contract.
- 20.4. In the case of a dispute between the Procuring Entity and the Supplier, the dispute shall be resolved in accordance with Republic Act 9285 ("R.A. 9285"), otherwise known as the "Alternative Dispute Resolution Act of 2004."
- 20.5. Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein, the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and the Procuring Entity shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.

21. Liability of the Supplier

- 21.1. The Supplier's liability under this Contract shall be as provided by the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, subject to additional provisions, if any, set forth in the **SCC**.
- 21.2. Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct, and in the case of infringement of patent rights, if applicable, the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Procuring Entity shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment.

22. Force Majeure

- 22.1. The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that the Supplier's delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of a *force majeure*.
- 22.2. For purposes of this Contract the terms "force majeure" and "fortuitous event" may be used interchangeably. In this regard, a fortuitous event or force majeure shall be interpreted to mean an event which the Supplier could not have foreseen, or which though foreseen, was inevitable. It shall not include ordinary unfavorable weather conditions; and any other cause the effects of which could have been avoided with the

exercise of reasonable diligence by the Supplier. Such events may include, but not limited to, acts of the Procuring Entity in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.

22.3. If a *force majeure* situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Procuring Entity in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Procuring Entity in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the *force majeure*.

23. Termination for Default

- 23.1. The Procuring Entity shall terminate this Contract for default when any of the following conditions attends its implementation:
- (a) Outside of *force majeure*, the Supplier fails to deliver or perform any or all of the Goods within the period(s) specified in the contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Procuring Entity pursuant to a request made by the Supplier prior to the delay, and such failure amounts to at least ten percent (10%) of the contact price;
- (b) As a result of *force majeure*, the Supplier is unable to deliver or perform any or all of the Goods, amounting to at least ten percent (10%) of the contract price, for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of the notice from the Procuring Entity stating that the circumstance of force majeure is deemed to have ceased; or
- (c) The Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract.
- 23.2. In the event the Procuring Entity terminates this Contract in whole or in part, for any of the reasons provided under GCC Clauses 0 to 0, the Procuring Entity may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Services similar to those undelivered, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Procuring Entity for any excess costs for such similar Goods or Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of this Contract to the extent not terminated.
- 23.3. In case the delay in the delivery of the Goods and/or performance of the Services exceeds a time duration equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the specified contract time plus any time extension duly granted to the Supplier, the Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract, forfeit the Supplier's performance security and award the same to a qualified Supplier.

24. Termination for Insolvency

The Procuring Entity shall terminate this Contract if the Supplier is declared bankrupt or insolvent as determined with finality by a court of competent jurisdiction. In this event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Procuring Entity and/or the Supplier.

25. Termination for Convenience

- 25.1. The Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The HoPE may terminate a contract for the convenience of the Government if he has determined the existence of conditions that make Project Implementation economically, financially or technically impractical and/or unnecessary, such as, but not limited to, fortuitous event(s) or changes in law and national government policies.
- 25.2. The Goods that have been delivered and/or performed or are ready for delivery or performance within thirty (30) calendar days after the Supplier's receipt of Notice to Terminate shall be accepted by the Procuring Entity at the contract terms and prices. For Goods not yet performed and/or ready for delivery, the Procuring Entity may elect:
- (a) to have any portion delivered and/or performed and paid at the contract terms and prices; and/or
- (b) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed and/or performed goods and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.
- 25.3. If the Supplier suffers loss in its initial performance of the terminated contract, such as purchase of raw materials for goods specially manufactured for the Procuring Entity which cannot be sold in open market, it shall be allowed to recover partially from this Contract, on a *quantum meruit* basis. Before recovery may be made, the fact of loss must be established under oath by the Supplier to the satisfaction of the Procuring Entity before recovery may be made.

26. Termination for Unlawful Acts

- 26.1. The Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract in case it is determined *prima facie* that the Supplier has engaged, before or during the implementation of this Contract, in unlawful deeds and behaviors relative to contract acquisition and implementation. Unlawful acts include, but are not limited to, the following:
- (a) Corrupt, fraudulent, and coercive practices as defined in **ITB** Clause 3(a);
- (b) Drawing up or using forged documents;
- (c) Using adulterated materials, means or methods, or engaging in production contrary to rules of science or the trade; and
- (d) Any other act analogous to the foregoing.

27. Procedures for Termination of Contracts

- 27.1. The following provisions shall govern the procedures for termination of this Contract:
- (a) Upon receipt of a written report of acts or causes which may constitute ground(s) for termination as aforementioned, or upon its own initiative, the Implementing Unit

shall, within a period of seven (7) calendar days, verify the existence of such ground(s) and cause the execution of a Verified Report, with all relevant evidence attached;

- (b) Upon recommendation by the Implementing Unit, the HoPE shall terminate this Contract only by a written notice to the Supplier conveying the termination of this Contract. The notice shall state:
 - (i) that this Contract is being terminated for any of the ground(s) aforementioned, and a statement of the acts that constitute the ground(s) constituting the same;
 - (ii) the extent of termination, whether in whole or in part;
 - (iii) an instruction to the Supplier to show cause as to why this Contract should not be terminated; and
 - (iv) special instructions of the Procuring Entity, if any.
- (c) The Notice to Terminate shall be accompanied by a copy of the Verified Report;
- (d) Within a period of seven (7) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Termination, the Supplier shall submit to the HoPE a verified position paper stating why this Contract should not be terminated. If the Supplier fails to show cause after the lapse of the seven (7) day period, either by inaction or by default, the HoPE shall issue an order terminating this Contract;
- (e) The Procuring Entity may, at any time before receipt of the Supplier's verified position paper described in item (d) above withdraw the Notice to Terminate if it is determined that certain items or works subject of the notice had been completed, delivered, or performed before the Supplier's receipt of the notice;
- (f) Within a non-extendible period of ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the verified position paper, the HoPE shall decide whether or not to terminate this Contract. It shall serve a written notice to the Supplier of its decision and, unless otherwise provided, this Contract is deemed terminated from receipt of the Supplier of the notice of decision. The termination shall only be based on the ground(s) stated in the Notice to Terminate;
- (g) The HoPE may create a Contract Termination Review Committee (CTRC) to assist him in the discharge of this function. All decisions recommended by the CTRC shall be subject to the approval of the HoPE; and
- (h) The Supplier must serve a written notice to the Procuring Entity of its intention to terminate the contract at least thirty (30) calendar days before its intended termination. The Contract is deemed terminated if it is not resumed in thirty (30) calendar days after the receipt of such notice by the Procuring Entity.

28. Assignment of Rights

The Supplier shall not assign his rights or obligations under this Contract, in whole or in part, except with the Procuring Entity's prior written consent.

29. Contract Amendment

Subject to applicable laws, no variation in or modification of the terms of this Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

30. Application

These General Conditions shall apply to the extent that they are not superseded by provisions of other parts of this Contract.

Section V. Special Conditions of Contract

GCC Clause				
1.1 (g)	The proc	curing Entity is the National Li	brary of the Philippines (NLP)	
1.1 (i)	The Supplier is:			
1.1 (j)	The Fun	ding Source is:		
	appropri amount		(GOP) through the authorized ppropriation Act (GAA) in the Hundred Thousand Pesos	
	Lot No.	Item Description	Approved Budget Contract (ABC)	
	1	Kids and Teens eBooks	Php203,192.00	
	2	Self-help eBooks	Php251,000.00	
	3	Scholarly eBooks	Php645,808.00	
		TOTAL ABC	Php1,100,000.00	
1.1 (k)		National Library of the Philippi C.M. Kalaw St., Ermita, Manila		
	N T T C	Curing Entity's address for National Library of the Philippi C.M. Kalaw St., Ermita, Manila Cel. Nos.: (02) 310-5035 Contact Person: Ira B. Albalos Marie Joy H. Bestoir Philmarc Jacinto BAC Secretary NLP Building Tel.: (02) 5336-7200 loc. 406 / Email Add: bac@nlp.gov.ph	nes 408	
6.1	Library instruction	of the Philippines, T.M. Kala on by the Administrative Office	by the Supplier at the National w St. Ermita Manila and upor the not later than 4:00pm on the VI. Schedule of Requirements.	
	Moreove of Requi	er, the delivery schedule as inc	dicated in Section VI. Schedule e option of the Procuring Entity	
10.2		er instructions		
10.4	No furth	er instructions		

13.1	No further instructions
13.4	No further instructions
14.	No further instructions
16.1	The Goods delivered are accepted by the Procuring Entity as to quantity only. However, inspection as to the Goods' compliance with the technical specifications, and its order and condition, will be done in the presence of the representatives of both Supplier and Procuring Entity upon prior due notice, written or verbal, to the authorized representative of the Supplier. The inspection will push through as scheduled even in the absence of the Supplier's representative, if the latter was duly notified. In which case, the results of the inspection conducted by the Procuring Entity shall be final and binding upon the Supplier.
	The inspection and tests that will be conducted shall be in accordance with Section VII. Technical Specifications.
17.4 and 17.5	No further instructions
19	No further instruction
21.1	If applicable, all partners to the joint venture shall be jointly and severally liable to the procuring entity.

Section VI. Schedule of Requirements

The delivery schedule expressed as weeks/months stipulates hereafter a delivery date which is the date of delivery to the project site.

Lot No	Item Description	Quantity	Total Cost	Delivered, Weeks/Months
				Within 30 calendar days upon receipt of P.O.
1	KIDS AND TEENS EBOOKS	33 volumes	203,192.00	
	Be Positive with Lola Miss B 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781528993210			
	Bunches of Lunches Luana Mitten 2020 Britannica Digital Learning 9781625138651			
	Chemical World Rowena Rae 2020 Orca Book Publishers 9781459821590			
	Harvey Comes Home Colleen Nelson 2020 Pajama Press 9781772781656			
	Have You Ever Zeen a Ziz? Linda Elovitz Marshall 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807531747			
	Hiking the Grand Mesa Kyle Torke 2020 Loving Healing Press 9781615995073			
	I Am Dog Karen Chaplin 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781528989862			
	I Am Sammy, Trusted Guide Francesca Rosa 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807516751			
	I Hate Underpants Leanne Fedele 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781528969871			
	I Hope You're Listening Tom Ryan 2020 AW Teen 9780807535097			
	I Love You to the Stars Crystal Bowman 2020 Kregel Publications 9780825446474			
	I Remember When Fatima Attia 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645755807			
	Life as a Teenage Vampire Amanda Meuwissen 2020 JMS Books LLC 9781943619320			
	Macy McMillan and the Rainbow Goddess Shari Green 2020 Pajama Press 9781772781571			
	Mythical Monsters Gerrie McCall 2020 Amber Books Ltd 9781908696854			
	No Turning Back Kim Flowers 2020 JMS Books LLC 9781611523744			
	Peek-a-Boo, Baby Luana Mitten 2020 Britannica			

Digital Learning 9781625138675		
-		
Books LLC 9781646564125		
Snoopy: A Beagle of Mars Charles M. Schulz 2020		
KaBOOM! 9781641441797		
The Big Sibling Getaway Korrie Leer 2020 Albert		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
·		
·		
2020 Dundurn 9781459746084		
The King of Jam Sandwiches Eric Walters 2020 Orca		
Book Publishers 9781459825574		
The Laura Ingalls Wilder Companion Annette		
Whitman & Company 9780807578599		
* *		
Publishing 9781945401084		
Trouble on the Wild West Express Hollie Hibbert		
2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807528662		
Specifications:		
1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in		
**		
· ·		
ebook related concerns.		
5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP		
	Snoopy: A Beagle of Mars Charles M. Schulz 2020 KaBOOM! 9781641441797 The Big Sibling Getaway Korrie Leer 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807528327 The History of Mischief Rebecca Higgie 2020 Fremantle Press 9781925816273 The Hunt Lynne Hartley 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645368069 The Invisible Neighborhood M.Y. Diallo 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645366423 The Invisible Visitors Norma Gauld 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645363873 The Jigsaw Puzzle King Gina McMurchy-Barber 2020 Dundurn 9781459746084 The King of Jam Sandwiches Eric Walters 2020 Orca Book Publishers 97816459825574 The Laura Ingalls Wilder Companion Annette Whipple 2020 Chicago Review Press 9781641601696 The Skeleton Key Mystery Anthony VanArsdale 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807507919 The Von Tripp Triplets Susan B. Robichaud 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645757184 The Warriors Twelve Jeanine AuVache 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781528960953 This Is a Seahorse Cassandra Federman 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807578599 Thomasina C.K Mallick 2020 Canterbury House Publishing 9781945401084 Trouble on the Wild West Express Hollie Hibbert 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807528662 Specifications: 1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access). 2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee. 3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP 4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.	Revolt of the Perfectly Free Kim Flowers 2020 JMS Books LLC 9781646564125 Snoopy: A Beagle of Mars Charles M. Schulz 2020 KaBOOM! 9781641441797 The Big Sibling Getaway Korrie Leer 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807528327 The History of Mischief Rebecca Higgie 2020 Fremantle Press 9781925816273 The Hunt Lynne Hartley 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645368069 The Invisible Neighborhood M.Y. Diallo 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645366423 The Invisible Visitors Norma Gauld 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645363873 The Jigsaw Puzzle King Gina McMurchy-Barber 2020 Dundurn 9781459746084 The King of Jam Sandwiches Eric Walters 2020 Orca Book Publishers 9781459825574 The Laura Ingalls Wilder Companion Annette Whipple 2020 Chicago Review Press 9781641601696 The Skeleton Key Mystery Anthony VanArsdale 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807507919 The Von Tripp Triplets Susan B. Robichaud 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781645757184 The Warriors Twelve Jeanine AuVache 2020 Austin Macauley Publishers 9781528960953 This Is a Seahorse Cassandra Federman 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807578599 Thomasina C.K Mallick 2020 Canterbury House Publishing 9781945401084 Trouble on the Wild West Express Hollie Hibbert 2020 Albert Whitman & Company 9780807528662 Specifications: 1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access). 2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee. 3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP 4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.

	promoting the ebooks.			
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook			
	Collection.			
	7. Must provide marc records			
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.			
2	SELF-HELP BOOKS	76 volumes	251,000.00	
	PHILOSOPHY			
	Legendary Self-Discipline / Peter Hollins. PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000261802			
	Practical Self-Discipline / Peter Hollins PublishDrive , 2020. '6610000250981			
	Self Confidence: Techniques to Overcome Fear & Self-Doubt - Become Unshakeable & Unstoppable / Armani Murphy. Important Publishing,2020. 9788835398882			
	Overthinking / Carmen Betancur. Tiffany Adams, 2020. 6610000256952			
	Climbing Mt. Happiness / Jerry L. Haynes. PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000265763			
	How to Feel Good in Difficult Times / Gael Lindenfield. Trigger Publishing, 2020. 9781789562002			
	Mindfulness Pocketbook / Gill Hasson. Capstone, 2020. 9780857088666			
	A Life Now Worth Living / Ashley Gordon. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020.9781528974349.			
	Better Small Talk / Patrick King. 2020. 6610000257164			
	You've Got This! / Margie Warrell. Wiley, 2020. 9780730368458			
	Procrastination Cure: 2 in 1: How To Stop Procrastination, Live Up To Your Full Potential And Succeed In Life: Includes Goal Setting Success and Productivity Plan / Tiffany Adams. Carmen Betancur, 2020. 6610000256327			
	The Miracle of Forgiving / J.P. Vaswani. Gita Publishing House, 2020. 9789386004338			
	How to Be Confident / Fredrick Kyomya. Kyomya Publishing, 2020.6610000251025			
	Reflections on Us / George William Bryan. Austin			

Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781528969932	
RELIGION	
A Road to Self Knowledge / Rudolf Steiner . GIANLUCA , 2020. 9788835365716	
SOCIAL SCIENCES	
Find How To Be Whole Again / Zoe McKey. PublishDrive, 2020.6610000250486	
Quit Sugar: Techniques to End Sugar Addiction, Increase your Energy & Have More Energy Than Before - Fix the Sugar Brain / Armani Murphy. Important Publishing, 2020. 9788835378754	
Addiction, Procrastination and Laziness / Covey Todd. Covey Todd, 2020. 9788835859758	
Life After Death / J.P. Vaswani. Gita Publishing House, 2020. 9789386004307	
Practical Intelligence / Patrick King. PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000247653	
Practical Self-Discipline / Peter Hollins. PublishDrive, 2020.6610000250981	
The Year of You for Mothers / Hannah Braime. Individuate Press, 2020. 6610000253203	
The Opportunity of Unemployment / Malcolm F Plumb. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781528965422	
Learn To Think Using Thought Experiments / Patrick King. PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000253098	
APPLIED SCIENCE	
How to Listen with Intention: The Foundation of True Connection, Communication, and Relationships / Patrick King. PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000263585	
Addictions / Shelly Gauntlet. Self Publisher, 2020. 9788835389767	
Quit Alcohol / Shelly Gauntlet. Self Publisher, 2020. 9788835390022	
Quit Smoking / Shelly Gauntlet. Self Publisher, 2020.9788835389996	
The Miracle of Forgiving / J.P. Vaswani. Gita Publishing House, 2020. 9789386004338	
I Can Always Continue / Franklin A. Díaz Lárez. Babelcube Inc., 2020.9781071527917	
The Work From Home Productivity Formula / Gerald Pilcher. Gerald Pilcher, 2020. 9788835820567	
Flu Season & Type 2 Diabetes / Amanda Fryer. Helen Jackson & Amanda Fryer, 2020. 6610000263455	
Through the Eyes of Shadow – One Man's Journey to PTSD / Greg Dean. Sonic Connect Trust, 2020.	

9781649991959	
Healthy Weight Loss - Burn Fat in 21 Days / Ameet Aggarwal. Ameet Aggarwal, 2020. 6610000259328	
Unshakable Resilience / Zoe McKey .PublishDrive, 2020. 6610000257607	
PCOS Diet for Hair Loss / Bruce Ackerberg. Mindplusfood, 2020. 6610000267163	
Meditation: Complete Mindfulness Practices for Beginners to Overcome Stress and Anxiety, Promote your Sleep and Enjoy Fresh Breath: / Mark Steven. Mark Steven, 2020. 9788835816362	
Memory Training / Jane Hampton. Self Publisher, 2020.9788835355892	
Healing Childhood Trauma / Robin Marvel. Loving Healing Press, 2020. 9781615994984.	
How to become pregnant / Kelechi Ogbonna. 2020. 9783255501218	
How to Cure Bad Breath / Covey Todd., Covey Todd, 2020. 9788835859468	
How to Lose Weight Healthily with Stop Watch Method! / Saintkenz. Cerebral Kenz, 2020. 9781676813002	
Menopause Solution / Covey Todd. Covey Todd, 2020. 9788835859505	
How To Stop Worrying What Other People Think of You / Dr. Michael C. Melvin. Dr. Michael C. Melvin, 2020. 9788835811022	
How to Control Your Emotions / Bisma Basma. Bisma Basma, 2020. 9785663212762	
Mental Hacks / Eleanor Wilkins. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781528995429.	
Fatty Liver Low Carb Cookbook / Tyler Spellmann. Mindplusfood, 2020. 6610000266128	
Keto Meal Prep Cookbook for Beginners / Harry Layton. MaryPrice, 2020. 9788835388074	
Keto Multicooker Dinners: Best Ketogenic Dinner Recipes To Lose Weight And Live Healthy / Morris Faye. Lovert PresS, 2020. 9788835386919	
The 30-Minute Low Carb Cookbook / Rosaline Parker. Raymond James, 2020. 9788835387633	
The Pressure Cooker & Air Fryer Cookbook:Pressure Cook & Airfry In One Pot / Peach Moore. Lovert Press, 2020. 9788835391593	
Korean Recipes /Harriett Morris. E-content Generic Vendor 2020. 9788969104854	
Instant Pot Cookbook For Dummies / Wendy Jo	

Peterson. John Wiley & Sons, Inc, , 2020.9781119641438	
Low Carb Low Sugar Cookbook Quick & Easy Diet Recipes / S.Timothy . S. Timothy, 2020. 9788835805304	
Traditional Vegetarian Cookbook / Florence Daniel. Interactive Media, 2020. 9781787361492	
A Writer's San Francisco / Eric Maisel. Ixia Press, 2020.9780486847993	
Too Much Loss: Coping with Grief Overload / Alan Wolfelt. Companion Press, 2020. 9781617222887	
A Woman's Guide To Healthy Aging . Barlow Publishing, 2020. 9781988025599	
Alzheimer's Return to Functionality /Adrian Spârlac. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781528979863	
Alzheimer's. Dementia What Now? / Deborah Terry. HigherLife Publishing, 2020. 9781951492175.	
Massage and Tickling Techniques / Steve A.G. Columb Kiadó, 2020. 6610000249350	
Relaxation Inspired, the Book / Christine Smith. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781528967426	
The Secret of Healing by Touch / Ingrid Maria Middleton. Austin Macauley Publishers, 2020. 9781645366041	
When Anxiety Strikes / Jason B. Hobbs. Kregel Publications, 2020. 9780825477010	
Keto Diet and Intermittent Fasting: Your Essential Guide For Low Carb, High Fat Diet to Skyrocket Your Mental and Physical Health / Ryan James.2020. 9788835816249	
Make an Informed Vaccine Decision for the Health of Your Child. New Atlantean Press, 2020. 9781881217428	
Empty Your Mind and Achieve Your Dreams / Keiko Aikawa Yogmata. Natus Books, 2020. 9781581771848	
5-Ingredient Natural Recipes / Phyllis Good. Walnut Street Books, 2020. 9781947597396	
Better Sleep for the Overachiever / Bartolucci Anne. AIBHS, 2020. 9781945074585	
Me First / Kate Christie. Otbebookpublishing, 2020. 9780730383987	
Living a Healthy Life with Chronic Conditions / Kate Lorig, DrPH. Bull Publishing Company, 2020. 9781945188336	
Pandemic Protection / Don Colbert. Siloam,	

	2020.9781629999029 After Mastectomy / Rosalind Benedet. Addicus			
	Books, 2020. 9781950091355			
	DIY Cannabis Extracts / Saul Silver. Red Kite Publishing, 2020. 6610000260898			
	Mediterranean Diet Cookbook / Alberto Bellino. Raymond James, 2020. 9788835850113			
	THE ARTS			
	The Art of Story-Telling / Marie L. Shedlock. Otbebookpublishing, 2020. 9783968652177			
	Specifications:			
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).			
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.			
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP			
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.			
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.			
	These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.			
	7. Must provide marc records			
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.			
3	SCHOLARLY EBOOKS	79 volumes	645,808.00	
	GENERALITIES			
	Access, Resource Sharing and Collection Development / Lee, Sul H. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000754773			
	Adaptive Resonance Theory in Social Media Data Clustering: Roles, Methodologies, and Applications / Meng, Lei;Tan, Ah-Hwee;Wunsch II, Donald C. Springer International Publishing AG, 2019. 9783030029852			
	Assistive Technologies in the Library / McClain, John. Society Publishing, 2019. 9781774070208			

Best Technologies for Public Libraries: Policies, Programs, and Services / DeCristofaro, Christopher;Hutter, James;Tanzi, Nick. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440869273	
Beyond Banned Books : Defending Intellectual Freedom Throughout Your Library / Pekoll, Kristin. 2019. American Library Association, 2019. 9780838918890	
Collection Development in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000756395	
Computer Software Cataloging : Techniques and Examples / Holzberlein, Deanne. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000756746	
Concepts and Methods for a Librarian of the Web / Kubek, Mario. Springer, 2019. 9783030231361	
Creating a Learning Commons: A Practical Guide for Librarians / Lampert, Lynn D.; Meyers-Martin, Coleen. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2019. 9781442272644	
Early Learning Through Play: Library Programming for Diverse Communities / Grabarek, Kristin;Lanni, Mary R. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440865831	
Growing Up Shared: How Parents Can Share Smarter on Social Media-and What You Can Do to Keep Your Family Safe in a No-Privacy World / Steinberg, Stacey. Sourcebooks, 2020. 9781492698128	
Homeschooling and Libraries: New Solutions and Opportunities / Gubnitskaia, Vera. McFarland & Company, Incorporated Publishers, 2020. 9781476639239	
Information Technology And Library: Managing Transformative Library Services / McClain, John. Society Publishing, 2019. 9781773619781	
Knowledge Management Techniques for Risk Management in It Projects: Emerging Research and Opportunities / Riaz, Muhammad Noman. 2019. IGI Global, 2019. 9781522583912	
LGBTQ+ Librarianship in the 21st Century: Emerging Directions of Advocacy and Community Engagement in Diverse Information Environments / Mehra, Bharat. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2019. 9781787564756	
Librarians in Schools As Literacy Educators: Advocates for Reaching Beyond the Classroom / Merga, Margaret Kristin. Palgrave Macmillan US, 2019. 9783030210250	

Libraries and Reading: Intellectual Disability and the Extent of Library Diversity / Conner. Matthew.Plocharczyk, Leah. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2020. 9781789733877 Libraries and the Substance Abuse Crisis: Supporting Your Community / Grove, Cindy, American Library Association, 2020. 9780838948088 Library Collaborations and Community Partnerships: Enhancing Health and Quality of Life / Hines-Martin, Vicki.Cox, Fannie M.; Cunningham, Henry R. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9780429799464 Library Management 101: A Practical Guide / Hussey, Lisa K.; Velasquez, Diane L. American Library Association, 2019. 9780838918630 Linked Open Data of Bibliometric Networks: Analytics Research for Personalized Library Services / Ali; Kazmer, Michelle, Emerald Publishing Limited, 2019. 9781789730067 Makerspace and Collaborative Technologies: A LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020. 9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis: The Complete Malware Analysts Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT. Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce, ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne:Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440878259 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440873251 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis, Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Librarians in Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 978140873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic Libraries / Chin Roemer, Robinskern, Verletta.			,	
Your Community / Grove, Cindy, American Library Association, 2020. 9780838948088 Library Collaborations and Community Partnerships: Enhancing Health and Quality of Life / Hines-Martin, Vicki;Cox, Fannie M.;Cunningham, Henry R. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9780429799464 Library Management 101: A Practical Guide / Hussey, Lisa K.; Velasquez, Diane L. American Library Association, 2019. 9780838918630 Linked Open Data of Bibliometric Networks: Analytics Research for Personalized Library Services / Ali;Kazmer, Michelle. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2019. 9781789730067 Makerspace and Collaborative Technologies: A LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020.9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis: The Complete Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and loT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey:Thabet, Amr., Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440882533 Podeasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 978140973096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Extent of Library Matthew;Plochar	Diversity / Conner, czyk, Leah. Emerald Publishing		
Enhancing Health and Quality of Life / Hines-Martin, Vicki;Cox, Famie M.;Cunningham, Henry R. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020, 9780429799464 Library Management 101 : A Practical Guide / Hussey, Lisa K.;Velasquez, Diane L. American Library Association, 2019. 9780338918630 Linked Open Data of Bibliometric Networks : Analytics Research for Personalized Library Services / Ali;Kazmer, Michelle, Emerald Publishing Limited , 2019. 9781789730067 Makerspace and Collaborative Technologies : A LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020.9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis : The Complete Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce, ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather:Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail, ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas, ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis, Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 978140873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 978100075917 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Your Community	/ Grove, Cindy. American Library		
Hussey, Lisa K.; Velasquez, Diane L. American Library Association, 2019. 9780838918630 Linked Open Data of Bibliometric Networks: Analytics Research for Personalized Library Services / Ali; Kazmer, Michelle. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2019. 9781789730067 Makerspace and Collaborative Technologies: A LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020.9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis: The Complete Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey; Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne; Buchansky, Heather; Gray, Brian C.; Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781400873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Geldaty, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Enhancing Health Vicki;Cox, Fanni	n and Quality of Life / Hines-Martin, e M.;Cunningham, Henry R. Taylor		
Analytics Research for Personalized Library Services / Ali;Kazmer, Michelle. Emerald Publishing Limited , 2019. 9781789730067 Makerspace and Collaborative Technologies : A LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020.9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis : The Complete Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC., 2019. 9781440852253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Hussey, Lisa K.;	Velasquez, Diane L. American		
LITA Guide / Thomsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020.9781538126493 Mastering Malware Analysis: The Complete Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 978140873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Analytics Researd Ali;Kazmer, Mi	ch for Personalized Library Services chelle. Emerald Publishing Limited,		
Malware Analyst's Guide to Combating Malicious Software, APT, Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / Kleymenov, Alexey;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing, Limited, 2019. 9781789614879 New Standards-Based Lessons for the Busy Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC., 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	LITA Guide / The	omsett-Scott, Beth. Rowman &		
Elementary School Librarian: Social Studies / Keeling, Joyce. ABC-CLIO, LLC. 2020. 9781440872259 Personal Librarians: Building Relationships for Student Success / Bisko, Lynne; Buchansky, Heather; Gray, Brian C.; Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Malware Analyst Software, APT, C Kleymenov, Alex	's Guide to Combating Malicious Cybercrime, and IoT Attacks / key;Thabet, Amr. Packt Publishing,		
Student Success / Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, Heather;Gray, Brian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440858253 Podcasting with Youth: a Quick Guide for Librarians and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Elementary Scho- Keeling, Joyce. A	ol Librarian: Social Studies /		
and Educators / Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870361 Role of Serials in Sci-Tech Libraries / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Student Success / Heather;Gray, Br	Bisko, Lynne;Buchansky, ian C.;Reese, E. Gail. ABC-CLIO,		
Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758177 School Libraries in a Time of Change: How to Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC- CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	and Educators / N	Maxwell, Lucas. ABC-CLIO, LLC,		
Survive and Thrive / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440873096 Serials Librarianship in Transition: Issues and Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic		,		
Developments / Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759419 The Culture of Digital Scholarship in Academic	Survive and Thriv	ve / Craver, Kathleen W. ABC-		
	Developments / C	Gellatly, Peter. Taylor & Francis		
		=		

American Library Association, 2019. 9780838919149	
The Public Library in the Bibliographic Network / Turock, Betty. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758368	
The Reference Librarian and Implications of Mediation / Ewing, M. Keith; Hauptman, Robert. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000758405	
The Role of the Electronic Resources Librarian / Stachokas, George. Elsevier Science & Technology, 2019. 9780081029268	
The School Librarian's Technology Playbook: Innovative Strategies to Inspire Teachers and Learners / Brown, Stacy. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2020. 9781440870408	
Totally Tweens and Teens: Youth-Created and Youth-Led Library Programs / Tuccillo, Diane P. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2020. 9781538130476	
Training of Sci-Tech Librarians and Library Users / Mount, Ellis. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000759396	
Understanding Libraries and Reading among Children / Mahwasane, Nkhangweni Patricia. Cambridge Scholars Publisher, 2019. 9781527534803	
PHILOSOPHY	
Modern Theories and Practices for Cyber Ethics and Security Compliance / Yaokumah, Winfred;Rajarajan, Muttukrishnan;Abdulai, Jamal-Deen;Wiafe, Isaac;Katsriku, Ferdinand Apietu. IGI Global, 2020. 9781799831501	
Mysterious Disappearances in History / George, Enzo. Rosen Publishing Group, 2019. 9781725346529	
The Languages of Leadership: How to Use Your Words, Actions and Behaviours to Influence Your Team, Peers and Boss / Born, Wendy. Major Street Publishing, 2019. 9780648410034	
Thick and Thin: Moral Argument at Home and Abroad / Walzer, Michael. University of Notre Dame Press, 2019. 9780268093532	
SOCIAL SCIENCES	
Empowering Citizens, Engaging the Public: Political Science for the 21st Century / Eisfeld, Rainer. Palgrave Macmillan US. 2019. 9789811359286	
A New Model for Housing Finance: Public and Private Sectors Working Together to Build Affordability / Baxamusa, Murtaza. Taylor & Francis	

Group, 2020. 9781000096590	
Building Capacity for Teaching Engineering in K-12 Education. National Academies Press, 2020. 9780309499439	
Challenging Extremist Views on Social Media: Developing a Counter-Messaging Response / Doosje, Bertjan;van Eerten, Jan Jaap. Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9781000053791	
Classroom Observation : A Guide to the Effective Observation of Teaching and Learning / O'Leary, Matt. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781317246459	
Companion to Public Space / Mehta, Vikas;Palazzo, Danilo. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781351002165	
Conserving Native Forests / Healey, Justin. The Spinney Press, 2020. 9781922274052	
Developing Excellence in Autism Practice: Making a Difference in Education / Guldberg, Karen. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781000070361	
Developing Self and Self-Concepts in Early Childhood Education and Beyond / Raban, Bridie. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2020. 9781839828409	
Essential Oils / Avizienis, Audra. Printers Row Publishing Group 9781684128082, 2019.	
Global Citizenship Education in Teacher Education: Theoretical and Practical Issues / Schugurensky, Daniel; Wolhuter, Charl. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781351129824	
Global Social Media Design : Bridging Differences Across Cultures / Sun, Huatong. Oxford University Press USA – OSO, 2020. 9780190845605	
Practical Risk Management for EPC / Design-Build Projects: Manage Risks Effectively - Stop the Losses / Salmon, Walter A. John Wiley & Sons, Incorporated, 2020. 9781119596240	
Psychoeducational Assessment of Preschool Children / Alfonso, Vincent C.;Bracken, Bruce A., Nagle, Richard J5th edition. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9780429622618	
Small-Scale Urban Greening: Creating Places of Health, Creativity, and Ecological Sustainability / Loder, Angela. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781317284253	
Transforming Teacher Education with Mobile Technologies / Burden, Kevin;Naylor, Amanda. Bloomsbury Publishing Plc, 2020. 9781350095649	
Urbanisation at Risk in the Pacific and Asia:	

Disasters, Climate Change and Resilience in the Built Environment / Sanderson, David;Bruce, Laura. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781000053500	
What Great Teachers Do Differently: Nineteen Things That Matter Most / Whitaker, Todd. – 3rd edition – Eye On Education, Incorporated, 2020. 9781000050325	
LANGUAGE	
The Emotional Rollercoaster of Language Teaching / Gkonou, Christina; Dewaele, Dr. Jean-Marc; King, Jim. 1st edition – Channel View Publications, 2020. 9781788928342	
PURE SCIENCE	
Aquatic Monocotyledons of North America: Ecology, Life History, and Systematics / Les, Donald H. Taylor & Francis Group, 2020. 9781351679695	
Sustainable Human-Nature Relations: Environmental Scholarship, Economic Evaluation, Urban Strategies / Cirella, Giuseppe T. Springer Singapore Pte. Limited, 2020. 9789811530494 GE1-350	
APPLIED SCIENCE	
30-Second AI and Robotics / Miranda, Luis de. The Ivy Press, 2019. 9781782407935	
A Parent's Guide to Social Media/ David C. Cook. 2019. 9780830781171	
A Parent's Guide to Teens & LGBT+ / David C. Cook. Axis, 2019. 9780830777662	
Handbook of Parenting: Volume 3: Being and Becoming a Parent / Bornstein, Marc H. – 3rd Edition Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9780429781322	
Handbook of Parenting: Volume 4: Social Conditions and Applied Parenting / Bornstein, Marc H – 3rd Edition Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9780429677786	
Handbook of Parenting : Volume 5: the Practice of Parenting / Bornstein, Marc H. – 3rd Edition Taylor & Francis Group, 2019. 9780429686610	
Mental Disability and Rehabilitation Sourcebook / Williams, Angela L. Omnigraphics, Incorporated, 2019. 9780780817715	
Metaheuristics for Robotics / Oulhadj, Hamouche;Daachi, Boubaker;Menasri, Riad. John Wiley & Sons, Incorporated, 2020. 9781119706984	
Nurturing Children's Talents: a Guide for Parents / Kiewra, Kenneth A. ABC-CLIO, LLC, 2019. 9781440867934	

Template in providing the metadata. 4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns. 5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP	
support fee. 3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLPcel Template in providing the metadata	
2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no	
1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).	
Specifications:	
Race and Modern Architecture: A Critical History from the Enlightenment to the Present / Cheng, Irene; Davis, Charles L.; Wilson, Mabel O. University of Pittsburgh Press, 2020. 9780822987413	
THE ARTS	
The Small Guide to Anxiety: The Latest Treatment Solutions for Overcoming Fears and Phobias so You Can Lead a Full & Happy Life / Small, MD, Gary; Vorgan, Gigi, Humanix Books, 2019. 9781630060909	
The Science of Parenting Adopted Children: A Brain-Based, Trauma-Informed Approach to Cultivating Your Child's Social, Emotional and Moral Development / James, Arleta. Jessica Kingsley Publishers, 2019. 9781784505721	
The Insta-Food Diet: How Social Media has Shaped the Way We Eat / Turner, Pixie. Head of Zeus, 2020. 9781788547208	
The Coronavirus Preparedness Handbook: How to Protect Your Home, School, Workplace, and Community from a Deadly Pandemic / Pennington, Tess. Skyhorse Publishing Company, Incorporated, 2020. 9781510762572	
Suicide Prevention after Neurodisability: An Evidence-Informed Approach / Simpson, Grahame K.;Brenner, Lisa A. Oxford University Press, Incorporated, 2019. 9780190668624	
Robotics in Healthcare: Field Examples and Challenges / Sequeira, João Silva. Springer, 2020. 9783030242305	
Oh Crap! I Have a Toddler: Tackling These Crazy Awesome YearsNo Time-Outs Needed / Glowacki, Jamie. 2019. Gallery Books. 9781982109745	

promoting the ebooks.		
6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.		
7. Must provide marc records		
8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.		
TOTAL	1,100,000.00	

I hereby certify to comp	ly and deliver the above requirements.	
Name of Company/Bidder	Signature Over Printed Name	Date

Section VII. Technical Specifications

Bidders must state either "Comply" or "Not Comply" or any equivalent term in the column "Statement of Compliance" against each of the individual parameters of each "Specification".

Lot No	Item Description	Quantity	Total Cost	Statement of Compliance
1	Kids and Teens Ebooks	33 volumes	203,192.00	
	Specifications:			
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).			
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.			
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP			
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.			
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.			
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.			
	7. Must provide marc records and PDFs			
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.			
2	Self-help eBooks	76 volumes	251,000.00	
	Specifications:			
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).			
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.			
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP			
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.			
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.			
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only			

	or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.			
	7. Must provide marc records			
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.			
3	Scholarly eBooks	79 volumes	645,808.00	
	Specifications:			
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).			
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.			
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP			
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.			
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.			
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.			
	7. Must provide marc records			
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.			
	r r garage			
	TOTAL		1,100,000.00	

I hereby certify to comp	ly with all the above Technical Specificat	ions
Name of Company/Bidder	Signature Over Printed Name	 Date
	of Representative	

SECTION VIII. BIDDING FORMS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Omnibus Sworn Statement	70
Statement of all Government & Private contracts completed which are similar in nature	72
List of all ongoing Government and Private contracts including contracts awarded but not yet started	73
Bid-Securing Declaration Form	74
Contract Agreement Form	76
Financial Bid Form	77

Sworn Statement

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)		
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF)	S.	S

AFFIDAVIT

I, [Name of Affiant], of legal age, [Civil Status], [Nationality], and residing at [Address of Affiant], after having been duly sworn in accordance with law, do hereby depose and state that:

1. Select one, delete the other:

If a sole proprietorship: I am the sole proprietor of [Name of Bidder] with office address at [address of Bidder];

If a partnership, corporation, cooperative, or joint venture: I am the duly authorized and designated representative of [Name of Bidder] with office address at [address of Bidder];

2. Select one, delete the other:

If a sole proprietorship: As the owner and sole proprietor of [Name of Bidder], I have full power and authority to do, execute and perform any and all acts necessary to represent it in the bidding for [Name of the Project] of the [Name of the Procuring Entity];

If a partnership, corporation, cooperative, or joint venture: I am granted full power and authority to do, execute and perform any and all acts necessary and/or to represent the [Name of Bidder] in the bidding as shown in the attached [state title of attached document showing proof of authorization (e.g., duly notarized Secretary's Certificate issued by the corporation or the members of the joint venture)];

- 3. [Name of Bidder] is not "blacklisted" or barred from bidding by the Government of the Philippines or any of its agencies, offices, corporations, or Local Government Units, foreign government/foreign or international financing institution whose blacklisting rules have been recognized by the Government Procurement Policy Board;
- 4. Each of the documents submitted in satisfaction of the bidding requirements is an authentic copy of the original, complete, and all statements and information provided therein are true and correct;
- 5. [Name of Bidder] is authorizing the Head of the Procuring Entity or its duly authorized representative(s) to verify all the documents submitted;

6. Select one, delete the rest:

If a sole proprietorship: I am not related to the Head of the Procuring Entity, members of the Bids and Awards Committee (BAC), the Technical Working Group, and the BAC Secretariat, the head of the Project Management Office or the end-user unit, and the project consultants by consanguinity or affinity up to the third civil degree;

If a partnership or cooperative: None of the officers and members of [Name of Bidder] is related to the Head of the Procuring Entity, members of the Bids and Awards Committee (BAC), the Technical Working Group, and the BAC Secretariat, the head of the Project Management Office or the end-user unit, and the project consultants by consanguinity or affinity up to the third civil degree;

If a corporation or joint venture: None of the officers, directors, and controlling stockholders of [Name of Bidder] is related to the Head of the Procuring Entity, members of the Bids and Awards Committee (BAC), the Technical Working Group, and the BAC Secretariat, the head of the Project Management Office or the end-user unit, and the project consultants by consanguinity or affinity up to the third civil degree;

- 7. [Name of Bidder] complies with existing labor laws and standards; and
- 8. [Name of Bidder] is aware of and has undertaken the following responsibilities as a Bidder:
 - a. Carefully examine all of the Bidding Documents;
 - b. Acknowledge all conditions, local or otherwise, affecting the implementation of the Contract;
 - c. Made an estimate of the facilities available and needed for the contract to be bid, if any; and
 - d. Inquire or secure Supplemental/Bid Bulletin(s) issued for the [Name of the Project].
- 9. [Name of Bidder] did not give or pay directly or indirectly, any commission, amount, fee, or any form of consideration, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person or official, personnel or representative of the government in relation to any procurement project or activity.

20 at	IN WITNESS WHEREOF,, Philippines.	I have hereunto set my hand this day of
		Bidder's Representative/Authorized Signatory [JURAT]

^{*} This form will not apply for WB funded projects.

Statement of all Government & Private Contracts completed which are similar in nature

Business Nam	e:				
Business Addı	ress:				_
Name of Contract			Amount of Contract	Date of Delivery	End User's Acceptance or Official Receipt(s) Issued
Government					for the Contract
<u>Private</u>					
Submitted by:	(D: 4.1				
D		Name & Signat			
Designation: _					

List of all Ongoing Government & Private Contract including Contracts awarded but not yet started

Business Na	me:				
Business Ad	dress:				
Name of Contract	Date of the Contract	Kinds of Goods	Amount of Contract	Date of Delivery	End User's Acceptance or Official Receipt(s) Issued
Government	<u>t</u>				for the Contract
<u>Private</u>					
Submitted b	y:(Printe	ed Name & Sig	nature)		
Designation	:				
Data					

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILI	PPINES)
CITY OF) S.S.
X	X

BID-SECURING DECLARATION

Invitation to Bid/Request for Expression of Interest No.¹: [Insert reference number]

To: [Insert name and address of the Procuring Entity]

I/We², the undersigned, declare that:

I/We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid Security, which may be in the form of a Bid-Securing Declaration.

I/We accept that: (a) I/we will be automatically disqualified from bidding for any contract with any procuring entity for a period of two (2) years upon receipt of your Blacklisting Order; and, (b) I/we will pay the applicable fine provided under Section 6 of the Guidelines on the Use of Bid Securing Declaration³, if I/we have committed any of the following actions:

- (i) Withdrawn my/our Bid during the period of bid validity required in the Bidding Documents; or
- (ii) Fail or refuse to accept the award and enter into contract or perform any and all acts necessary to the execution of the Contract, in accordance with the Bidding Documents after having been notified of your acceptance of our Bid during the period of bid validity.

I/We understand that this Bid-Securing Declaration shall cease to be valid on the following circumstances:

- (a) Upon expiration of the bid validity period, or any extension thereof pursuant to your request;
- (b) I am/we are declared ineligible or post-disqualified upon receipt of your notice to such effect, and (i) I/we failed to timely file a request for reconsideration or (ii) I/we filed a waiver to avail of said right;
- (c) I am/we are declared as the bidder with the Lowest Calculated and Responsive Bid/Highest Rated and Responsive Bid⁴, and I/we have furnished the performance security and signed the Contract.

74

¹Select one and delete the other.

²Select one and delete the other. Adopt same instruction for similar terms throughout the document.

³Issued by the GPPB through GPPB Resolution 03-2012 on 27 January 2012.

⁴Select one and delete the other.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I/We have hereunto set my/our hand/s this _____ day of [month] [year] at [place of execution].

[Insert NAME OF BIDDER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE]

[Insert signatory's legal capacity]
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of [month] [year] at [place of execution], Philippines. Affiant/s is/are personally known to me and was/were identified by me through competent evidence of identity as defined in the 2004 Rules on Notarial Practice (A.M. No. 02-8-13-SC). Affiant/s exhibited to me his/her [insert type of government identification card used], with his/her photograph and signature appearing thereon, with no and his/her Community Tax Certificate No at
Witness my hand and seal this day of [month] [year].
NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC Serial No. of Commission Notary Public for until Roll of Attorneys No PTR No, [date issued], [place issued] IBP No, [date issued], [place issued]
Doc. No Page No Book No Series of

Contract Agreement Form

PROCURIN	NG ENTITY] of the Philipp	ines (hereinafter called "	the Entity") of the one part and ter called "the Supplier") of the
[brief description of the content of	ription of goods and serv	ices] and has accepted in the sum of [contract	Is and ancillary services, viz a Bid by the Supplier for the trice in words and figures.
NO	W THIS AGREEMENT W	ITNESSETH AS FOLLO	OWS:
	his Agreement words and assigned to them in the Co	<u>=</u>	ve the same meanings as are erred to.
	following documents shalement, viz.:	l be deemed to form and	d be read and construed as part
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)	the Bid Form and the Pathe Schedule of Require the Technical Specificathe General Conditions the Special Conditions the Entity's Notification	tions; of Contract; of Contract; and	by the Bidder;
hereinafter	mentioned, the Supplier has and to remedy defects the	ereby covenants with the	the Entity to the Supplier as ne Entity to provide the goods respects with the provisions of
the goods a sum as ma	nd services and the remedy	ying of defects therein, the	onsideration of the provision of the Contract Price or such other contract at the time and in the
			this Agreement to be executed on the day and year first above
Signed, seal	led, delivered by	the	(for the Entity)
Signed, seal	led, delivered by	the	(for the Supplier).

FINANCIAL BID FORM

Date:	
Invitation to Bid No:	

To: National Library of the Philippines T.M. Kalaw St. Ermita, Manila

Gentlemen and/or Ladies:

Having examined the Bidding Documents including Bid Bulletin Numbers [insert numbers], the receipt of which is hereby duly acknowledged, we, the undersigned, offer to [supply/deliver/perform] [description of the Goods] in conformity with the said Bidding Documents for the sum of [total Bid amount in words and figures] or such other sums as may be ascertained in accordance with the Schedule of Prices attached herewith and made part of this Bid.

Lot No	Item Description	Quantity	Bid Offer
1	Kids and Teens Ebooks	33 volumes	
	Specifications:		
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).		
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.		
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP		
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.		
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.		
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.		
	7. Must provide marc records and PDFs		
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.		
2	Self-help eBooks	76 volumes	
	Specifications:		
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).		
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.		
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP		

	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.		
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.		
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.		
	7. Must provide marc records		
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.		
3	Scholarly eBooks	79 volumes	
	Specifications:		
	1. Upon purchase, the NLP should own these titles in perpetuity (perpetual access).		
	2. These materials should be purchased with no annual fee, no maintenance fee, no hosting fee, and no support fee.		
	3. Provide 24/7 unlimited access /user using IP/Username and Password authentication to NLP		
	4. Provide FREE training and orientation, usage statistics, administrator and technical support for ebook related concerns.		
	5. The vendor will provide continuous support to NLP promoting the ebooks.		
	6. These titles should be accessed in one platform only or in platforms with existing NLP eBook Collection.		
	7. Must provide marc records		
	8. Submit a soft copy of technical and financial requirements onto USB flash drive or CD or DVD. Use the attached Excel Template in providing the metadata.		

Bibliographic Information of Ebooks: (format to be used)

Lot No.	Title	Date of Publication	Total Bid Offer
1	1		
2	1		
3	1		

We undertake, if our Bid is accepted, to deliver the goods in accordance with the delivery schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

If our Bid is accepted, we undertake to provide a performance security in the form, amounts, and within the times specified in the Bidding Documents.

We agree to abide by this Bid for the Bid Validity Period specified in **BDS** provision for **ITB** Clause 18.2 and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.

Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof and your Notice of Award, shall be binding upon us.

We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you may receive

We certify/confirm that we comply with the eligibility requirements as per **ITB** Clause 5 of the Bidding Documents.

Dated this			lay of			20	.•		
[signature]				[in th	[in the capacity of]				
Duly	authorized	to	sign	Bid	for	and	on	behalf	of

[Name of Representative, Name of Company, Company Address, Tel./Fax No., Email]

